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  CARSON CITY, NEVADA, THURSDAY, AUGUST 8, 2019, A.M. SESSION

      -o0o-

      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Okay.  Good morning.

  This is Micheline Fairbank, and I'm going to go ahead and get
  the hearing started, or the prehearing conference proceeding
  for the Lower White River Flow System Order 1303 hearing on
  the solicited reports.
      I'm Micheline Fairbank and I'll be operating as
  the hearing officer for today's purposes.  With me is Melissa
  Flatley, and she's the chief of our hearing section, and --
  and so we'll go ahead and be conducting the hearing.
      We do have a sign-in sheet, and so if all the
  people that are here present in Carson City, if you have not
  signed in on the sign-in sheet, if you'll make sure you do so
  before the -- before you leave today.
      And for those individuals who are appearing on
  the phone conference, I think I have most everybody who
  accepted the calendar invite and so we'll go ahead and put you
  on the sign-in sheet via those calendar invites.
      However, if you are calling in and you did not
  accept a calendar invite, if you'll please send an email so we
  can make sure we have your participation and attendance noted
  for the record.
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      So this is the time set for the hearing, the
  prehearing conference for the Order 1303 reports that have
  been solicited by the State Engineer's office.
      And as we've spoken at the last public workshop,
  the hearing on the Order 1303 reports is going to commence on
  September 23rd, but prior to issuing a scheduling order,
  there's obviously a bunch of logics we need to work out and
  want to make sure we have a clear playing field which will be
  outlined also in that scheduling order for all the parties and
  participants to this proceeding.
      As we've kind of noted all a long, this is a
  different format than most of our protested hearings.  There's
  not necessarily -- there's not an Applicant and a Protestant.
      But what this is is really an opportunity for the
  participants and those stakeholders in the Lower White River
  Flow System to come forth and have an opportunity to present
  their reports that they've submitted or rebuttal reports that
  have been submitted to allow the State Engineer to go ahead
  and take that under advisement in making further
  determinations with respect to the issues.
      So, just to go ahead and get started, I'm just
  going to state we're a little bit limited in time this
  morning, so we have to complete this by the noon hour because
  this room is actually being occupied this afternoon as well.
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      So we're not going to extend past the lunch hour.
  And so I'm going to go ahead and give us a quick road map of
  what we are intending to accomplish during this meeting this
  morning, or this hearing this morning.
      So the purpose of this conference is to go over
  the purpose of the Order 1303 hearing.  So what are our
  expectations and what our goals for the State Engineer's
  office for having that hearing?
      To address the timing and length of the hearing.
  To discuss the sequence of presentation by the different
  participants.
      To go over procedures and other administrative
  matters relating to the Order 1303 hearing and to determine
  the time for disclosures of witnesses and evidence anticipated
  to be filed and relied upon during the hearing.  And then to
  address any other questions.
      So, just to kind of provide a summary for the
  purpose of the hearing.  The purpose of the hearing is to
  consider the reports solicited pursuant to Order 1303.
      And so the State Engineer views the purpose of
  Order 1303 and the report submitted in response to the
  solicitation as an opportunity for the participants who have
  or will have filed reports, rebuttal reports an opportunity to
  explain their positions and conclusions and to respond to any
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  criticism of those positions and conclusions presented by
  other parties through rebuttal reports.
      The participants are the stakeholders who have
  submitted either a report or rebuttal report or both a report
  and rebuttal report.
      Individuals who do not submit a report will be
  allowed to provide public comment, but they're not
  participants for the purpose of presenting testimony, evidence
  or cross-examining.
      And just because a participant has submitted a
  report or rebuttal report does not require to party to
  something evidence beyond their reports.
      So the State Engineer will consider all reports
  and opinions submitted, regardless of whether there's --
  actual parties proffer witnesses or testimony.
      Participants will be limited to offering
  testimony and evidence relating to the most salient
  conclusions, including data, evidence and other information
  supporting those conclusions.
      So, the idea is that participants who have
  submitted reports, the State Engineer and staff, we will have
  reviewed those reports prior to the commencement of the
  hearing and the State Engineer staff within the Division of
  Water Resources, we are well qualified to review, consider,
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  analyze reports, including the data and evidence relied upon
  in preparing opinions and rendering those -- and rendering the
  conclusions within the reports.
      And the State Engineer's expectation and
  intention for this hearing is that the parties who have
  submitted either a report or rebuttal reports will be
  permitted an opportunity to provide limited testimony and to
  submit evidence identifying those salient conclusions and
  findings contained in those reports.
      And really the purpose is to direct the State
  Engineer and our staff to the data, information and relevant
  evidence within the State Engineer's administrative record or
  to provide that evidence in support of those conclusions.
      So, this isn't -- the hearing is not intended to
  have everybody and every participant to go through each and
  every sub detail of their reports.
      The idea is that we want you to go ahead and hit
  the high points, point us to those conclusions, point us in
  the direction what do you think is substantive and important
  for our office to really consider, but the intent is that
  we're trying to go ahead and keep this relatively limited and
  focused.  We have the capability to go ahead and examine all
  the detail and such.
      So the hearing is not and the State Engineer will
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  not permit participants to address each and every detail.  And
  the purpose is to afford participants the opportunity to
  highlight the points and to direct staff components which are
  the most significant matters as is addressed in the Order 1303
  solicitation which are the geographic boundary of
  hydrologically connected groundwater and surface water systems

  comprising the Lower White Water River Flow System.
      The information obtained from the Order 1169
  aquifer test, and subsequent to the aquifer test, the Muddy
  River Headwater Spring Flow as it relates to aquifer recovery
  since the completion of the aquifer test.
      The long term annual quantity of groundwater that
  maybe pumped from the Lower White River Flow System, including

  relationships between location of pumping on discharge to the
  Muddy River Springs and the capture of Muddy River flow.
      The effects of movement on water rights between
  alluvial wells and carbonate wells on deliveries of senior
  decreed rights in the Muddy River and other matters
  participants have included in their reports that they believe
  to be relevant in the State Engineer's analysis.
      MR. FLANGAS: A question?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.
      MR. FLANGAS: When you say "other matters
  relevant", are you limiting to that to the hydrology, other
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  matters relevant to the hydrology or any other matter relevant
  period?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So it's not -- it's
  not any other matter relevant period.  It's relevant to these
  particular issues and questions that we're asking.
      And so, and I'm going to talk about this and
  we've spoken about this before, is that really this is a
  threshold reporting aspect, that this is part of a
  multi-tiered process in terms of determining the appropriate
  management strategy to the Lower River Flow System.
      And in order for the office to go ahead and start
  to engage in working with the -- with the community, working
  with water right holders and determining what an appropriate
  management strategy is, there's threshold matters that have to
  be decided and determined.
      And that is those particular, those four
  components that we've solicited in the Order 1303 report.
  This larger substantive policy determinations is not part of
  this particular proceeding.
      That's part of later proceedings, but this is
  what has to occur in order to inform those future policy
  determinations and decisions.
      And while some people have addressed some policy
  interplays, because there are some policy interplays into some
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  of these findings and determinations, really this is more
  about a scientific analysis and data analysis.
      MR. FLANGAS: Thank you for that clarification.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So second, the purpose

  of the hearing is limited to those issues I've outlined and
  these particular issues must be addressed to decide the
  threshold matter.
      So, kind of to follow up on Alex's question, to
  the extent participants intend or desire to spend time
  addressing future policy considerations which are not
  encompassed within the issues specifically identified in the
  solicitation of the reports, those matters will not be
  considered during these proceedings.
      The State Engineer anticipates that any future
  decision will address -- that the future decision coming out
  of this Order 1303 hearing will address the following issues.
      The geographic boundary of the hydrologically
  connected water system comprising the Lower White River Flow

  System.  To whether or not that's a singular basin, whether or
  not it's encompassing multiple basins, that's going to be a
  decision that is ultimately determined by the State Engineer
  following this hearing.
      The quantity of water that may be sustainably
  developed within the Lower White River Flow System without
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  conflicting with senior rights, and whether there should be
  any restrictions or limitations on the movement of points of
  diversion within the LWRFS and other issues which will provide

  the framework for making future management decisions within
  the LWRFS.
      And the purpose of the hearing is not to resolve
  or address allegations of conflict between groundwater pumping
  within the LWRFS and Muddy River decreed rights.  That is not
  the purpose of this hearing and that's not what we are going
  to be deciding at this point in time.
      The purpose of the hearing is to determine what
  the sustainability is, what the impact is on decreed rights,
  and then addressing and resolving allegations of conflict
  should that be a determination that will be addressed in, at a
  future point in time.
      Also, I want to provide a little bit of kind of a
  framework for parties to understand what our office is looking
  at when we're reviewing the reports received in response to
  our solicitation.
      Our office is looking for the following, and this
  is not a comprehensive list, but this is just kind of a
  framework.
      We're looking for how conclusions are supported
  by the available data.
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      How those conclusions differ from positions our
  office has previously taken.
      Whether there's new interpretations of data based
  upon what has been observed since the conclusion of the Order
  1169 aquifer test.
      Whether the conclusions that are drawn are
  sufficiently supported by the available data and cited to
  data.
      Whether the conclusions and data and evidence
  relied upon in rendering those conclusions are independently
  reproducible and verifiable.
      So if our office can't go through and reproduce
  the data that you're relying upon in terms of making your
  conclusions, it's going to be difficult for us to go ahead and
  substantiate those findings.  And we're also going to be
  looking for commonalities and conclusions amongst the various
  participants.
      So, again, that's a general overview, it's not an
  exhaustive list of what we're looking for.
      So that I just kind of wanted to provide
  everybody a little bit of a framework of what we anticipate
  the Order 1303 hearing to be encompassing and the little bit
  about what the direction and the lane in which we're intending
  to operate in.
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      So moving onto the next item on kind of our
  agenda for this morning is the timing and the length of the
  hearing.
      So, as I mentioned before, we're scheduling the
  hearing to commence on September 23rd, 2019.  At this point in
  time, we're anticipating that the hearing will be held from
      8:30 a.m. until 5 o'clock p.m. with an hour and 30 minute
  lunch break and the hearing will be set for two weeks and will
  end on October 4th.
      So, again, as I've outlined, the purpose of the
  hearing is limited and the expectation of the parties will
  distill the reports and conclusions into a succinct
  presentation of the salient opinions and direct our office to
  the data and other information supporting of those
  conclusions.
      And, again, the Division of Water Resources has
  the expertise and experience to review the reports submitted
  and we are actively engaged in reviewing all of the reports
  that have been submitted for our office and every report will
  be submitted prior to the hearing on September 23rd.
      So the State Engineer does not desire
  participants to rehash the reports, and on that basis, the
  hearing is being set for two weeks.  And we believe this
  should be more than adequate time for participants to present
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  their opinions, respond to any rebuttal, and for inclusion for
  rebuttal opinions.
      So we've been looking at what we're thinking for
  the hearing structure, and certainly this is going to be a
  point of discussion this morning, but the State Engineer's
  proposing the hearing be structured so that the first five
  days are assigned to those participants who have submitted
  substantial initial reports.
      So in the sense we've had a variation as
  everybody has available, if they haven't seen already on our
  website, all of the reports that have been submitted to our
  office are available on the website under the news tab and
  then there's a tab for LWRFS and then we have all the reports
  within there.
      And so we've been reviewing the reports and there
  are some that are more comprehensive than other reports.  And
  so the more comprehensive reports and the more substantial
  ones that are addressing a more broad variety of the
  particular issues, we see those first, those five participants
  as being the Moapa Band of Indians, the National Park Service,
  the United States Fish and Wildlife Service, Coyote Spring
  Investments, and the Southern Nevada Water Authority.
      And so what we are considering, and certainly
  this is part of the dialogue, is that for those first five
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  days, each one of those parties, their reports and
  cross-examination of those parties' witnesses will occur in
  one day.  So we'll assign a day to each of those parties.
      MR. ROBISON: Sorry, could you repeat that,
  please?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So each of those
  parties will be assigned one day, and so what we're trying to
  do is we are trying to balance the time and so that -- that
  one day would encompass both the presentation of that party's
  witnesses and evidence as well as an equal amount of time to
  go ahead and cross-examine.
      MR. ROBISON: Does that one day include a
  rebuttal?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.  Yes, that will
  include the rebuttal.
      MR. ROBISON: Thank you.  Kent Robison for CSI
  Projects.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So the next
  participants we believe will need more than probably about a
  half day and perhaps a little more, but about a half day, but
  not a full day, would be the Moapa Valley Water District,
  Vidler, Lincoln County, the City of North Las Vegas and the
  centers -- Center for Biologic Diversity.
      So we believe we should be able to move through
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  those participants in not more than three days.  Probably
  about -- and so, optimally, we're trying to do that within two
  and a half days.
      And, finally, we believe that the remaining time
  will be sufficient to address Dry Lake and their Dry Lake
  Georgia Pacific and Republic Services, Great Basin Water
  Network, Technichrome and any rebuttal report submissions.
      Yes, Mr. Robison.
      MR. ROBISON: The one day that is assigned to the
  major report, the first week, that day includes
  cross-examination of whatever is presented by that person?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.
      MR. ROBISON: That entity.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Um-hum.
      MR. ROBISON: Okay.  Thank you.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: And, again, the idea

  is we have the capacity to go ahead and review the reports and
  the evidence and the data relied upon, but this is the
  opportunity for the participants to really highlight the
  salient conclusions and point us in the direction of what the
  evidence is that supports those conclusions.
      MR. TAGGART: Could I just ask a question?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.
      MR. TAGGART: For the record, Paul Taggart, for
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  Southern Nevada Water Authority.  In your view, have all the
  parties that you just listed submitted reports?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: No.  There's still
  rebuttal reports, and we anticipate at this point in time,
  we'd obviously -- rebuttal reports are not due until next
  Friday.  But at this point in time, I'm aware of probably at
  least three parties that will be submitting rebuttal reports.
      But the rebuttal reports, again, they haven't
  submitted an initial report, so it's going it be a truncated
  period of time in which to go ahead and present their, you
  know, their -- their rebuttal opinions or to address those
  opinions to the extent necessary.
      And part of the idea, and just to be completely
  candid with everyone, is as we move through these different
  processes and get through the different parties, a lot of the
  different issues and rebuttal issues are going to have been
  addressed.
      And kind of the idea is starting out with the
  more substantive reports and the more substantive analysis
  first is that it's going to have a funnel effect in the extent
  that people will have had an opportunity to go ahead, get a
  lot of either evidence and conclusions that they have either
  supported already presented.
      And so we're not going to have to spend a lot of
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  duplicative time restating the same opinions or the same
  findings or the same interpretations of data.  And also
  there's going to be opportunities for people to go an ahead
  and get the cross-examination or the challenging of evidence
  and opinions.
      And so the rebuttal reports, while I understand
  and appreciate that some of those parties are going to want to
  go ahead and at least have a witness, present some of the data
  relied upon in rendering why they believe that certain
  conclusions are not supported by other parties.
      Most of that will have and should have been drawn
  out during the proceedings leading up to it.
      Yes, Kent.
      MR. ROBISON: Yes.  Is the order of presentation
  that which you just related for the major report -- reporting
  parties?  Is that the order, or is that to be determined?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: That's to be
  determined.  We'll have that discussion, but that's kind of a
  general order of which I've -- we've been contemplating at
  this point in time.
      MR. ROBISON: Thank you.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.
      MS. GLASGOW: Hi, Karen Glasgow for the
  Department of Interior representing the National Park Service.
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      With respect to questioning or cross-examination,
  will the -- your office be participating in that, or is it
  just going to be report writers, rebuttal writers only?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: No.  Our office will

  be asking questions.  I mean, we always reserve our right
  during hearings to ask questions of the participants and of
  witnesses.
      MS. GLASGOW: Thank you.
      MR. MORRISON: Excuse me, Greg Morrison, Muddy
  Valley Water District.  I understand the structure that you're
  looking at as far as the substance of the initial reports that
  were submitted.
      I think my client anticipated submitting much
  more of a substantial rebuttal report and as the community who
  is essentially in the absolute heart of this entire matter,
  I'm not sure if we're a hundred percent comfortable being
  relegated to this second day truncated status in our
  participation.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: And certainly -- and

  that's why we're having the dialogue and the conversation is
  trying to balance out the time within that two-week window of
  time to allow parties, you know, a reasonable opportunity.
      But, again, the idea is also to keep everything
  very, you know, focused and, again, have people highlight the
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  salient points, the salient opinions and point us in the
  direction.
      And we'll talk -- we'll talk about balancing this
  out here in a little while as well.
      MR. MORRISON: Okay.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So just to kind of --
  so we understand that the NV Energy will be submitting a
  rebuttal report.
      MS. CAVIGLIA: That is correct.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Thank you, Justina.

  We also understand that Alex, I think.
      MR. FLANGAS: Nevada Cogeneration.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So, Nevada Cogen will

  be submitting a rebuttal report.
      Are there any other parties who did not submit an
  initial report who will be submitting a rebuttal report?
      Steve?
      MR. KING: Steve King for Muddy Valley Irrigation
  Company.  We will be submitting a rebuttal report.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: And does anybody know

  what the LDS Church, and the Church of --
      MR. CARLSON: We haven't made a decision of -- at
  this point.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Okay.  And just
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  because I'm trying to understand the number of participants so
  we can anticipate the window of time in which to try to
  balance everybody.
      MR. CARLSON: Sev Carlson, for the record.  I
  think in all likelihood we'll be monitoring closely what the
  City of Las Vegas will be --
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Okay.
      MS. BRINTON: Kathryn Brinton for the Department
  of Interior, BLM.  There's a chance we'll be joining with the
  Park Service, but we still haven't decided entirely what we're
  going to do.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So, just to kind of
  understand, I mean, other than the Moapa Valley Water
  District, are there any other parties that believe that kind
  of the framework that we've outlined is unduly restrictive in
  terms of their ability to present their issues as the State
  Engineer has outlined the intent and purpose of the hearing?
      MR. TAGGART: Yeah, again, Paul Taggart for
  Southern Nevada Water Authority.  We think we'll need more
  than a day.  We think we need a day and a half.  And I think
  that we totally understand your effort to make presentations
  concise.
      I think that we have three witnesses, and in
  anticipating the potential cross-examination time, we're
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  just -- I mean, again, how do we manage how much time gets
  taken up on cross-examination, that's outside the control of
  the offering party.
      So -- so, that's, you know, our view is we need a
  day and a half to make sure we have enough time to put on our
  presentation, there's enough time for cross-examination.  And
  then we can put on our next witness.
      But we will be concise as possible.  I mean,
  we're imagining, you know, 45 minutes as a presentation on
  direct of a witness, then maybe another 45 minutes with the
  next witness, then maybe a half hour with the next.
      But cross-examination is really difficult to
  anticipate.  And just given my experience, you can eat up an
  entire half a day with one witness, even if direct is only
  45 minutes, with the cross.
      Particularly, if we have 10 or 12, I don't know
  how many parties are authorized to cross -- or how many
  parties have submitted reports, and therefore, would be
  authorized to cross-examine, but anyway, that's our point
  here.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: And so I think it's
  part of to follow up with a little bit, and I appreciate that,
  Mr. Taggart, is, you know, to follow up with regards to that,
  is -- you know, obviously our office is going to encourage the

Page 24

  participants to, you know, be, you know, working to avoid
  redundancy in the cross-examination of witnesses.
      Certainly if one party has elicited the
  information or a line the questioning that you intended to go
  ahead and address what that particular witness, we would like
  to avoid the redundancy.  Not everybody has to, you know, as
  the saying goes, beat the dead horse.
      And so, you know, that's what we're going to be
  looking for and that's one of the things that we're hoping
  will help maintain the time frame, and you know, obviously,
  you know, I -- for full transparency, in terms of what we're
  trying to do is, again, is we're trying to go ahead and keep
  that within that two-week period of time.
      In all honesty, we still have to wait and see
  what rebuttal reports are submitted and we want to provide all
  the parties a reasonable opportunity, but not -- this isn't
  intended to become a six-week hearing.
      If we to go ahead and extend the hearing once we
  get all the rebuttal reports in, the scheduling order will go
  ahead and account for that.
      And so the concerns raised by the SNWA and the
  SNWA parties, as well as the Moapa Valley Water District,
  we'll take those under advisement in terms of setting the
  schedule, recognizing while we would -- we are endeavoring to
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  not continue the hearing into the second week of October which
  would be the 7th, 8th.
      If it's necessary in order to provide all the
  opportunities an adequate opportunity, we will continue -- the
  hearing will extend into that following week.
      And so, I appreciate the feedback, because those
  are the type of things and, obviously, there's a bit of
  uncertainty not knowing how many rebuttal reports are going to
  be submitted.
      MR. TAGGART: Well, and if I can, just to build
  on that, if -- if we go to day one and whoever that first
  party is can't get done, but we're all being, you know,
  efficient, we may find out quickly that this schedule, this
  time allocation isn't working completely and that's when we
  start talking about whether to continue on into the next week.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Right.  Well, so when

  we issued the scheduling order, the scheduling order will set
  out the days and times.  And part of that is what we're going
  to try to talk about today is get an understanding of what the
  parties, you know, I understand that Moapa Valley Water
  District feels that a half of day would be unduly restrictive
  for their purposes.
      I understand that SNWA believes that a day is
  unduly restrictive.  And so we're going to take some of that
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  feedback and we are going to develop the sequencing of the
  report of the participants' participation that is going to be
  set forth in the schedule order.
      The scheduling order will also indicate that as
  necessary the hearing will continue, you know, day to day
  beyond that, as, you know, if necessary.
      Yes, Mr. Robison.
      MR. ROBISON: Rebuttal will overlap with
  cross-examination, so that provides some incentive to be
  succinct.
      We are customarily and frequently restricted in
  time limitations in courtrooms, but that said, any major
  player that gets a day and a half, we want the same.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: And I also understand

  that's one of the other balancing interests.
      MR. ROBISON: Thank you.
      MR. TAGGART: And, again, just when we talk about
  rebuttal, we mean, like if I have a witness who had done a
  report and has a report, an initial report and rebuttal
  report, that witness will testify about both of those reports
  at the same time and then be subjected to cross-examination
  and then redirect and then questions of staff and then that
  witness would be done.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes, that's correct.
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      MR. DONNELLY: Patrick Donnelly, Center for
  Biological Diversity.  I think -- I'm checking with our
  hydrologist about half day and whether that's adequate.  I
  would think a half day plus, probably.
      But I think we would be as -- as or more
  concerned about the structure and equity of the
  cross-examination process, particularly because there would be
  a week and a half before we get to go and could probably
  elicit a lot of our points during that process if it is
  structured properly.  So, what is that going to look like?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Well, the idea is that

  the cross-examination process will be not less than the amount
  of time that a participant -- that a particular witness was
  subject to their direct examination.
      MR. ROBISON: By all parties.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: What?
      MR. ROBISON: I'm sorry, by all parties.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: By all parties.
      MR. ROBISON: Thank you.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: And, again, that's why

  we're encouraging the parties to go ahead and, you know, be
  cognitive of what the other questions and to the extent that
  there's parties that have similar perspectives, similar
  conclusions, similar opinions that, you know, perhaps that,
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  you know, certainly can't tell people how to go ahead and
  manage their own cases, but coordination and communication
  amongst the parties is certainly encouraged.
      But at the same time, there are going to be a lot
  more individuals intending to cross-examine a witness or an
  expert at any given time.
      So there's probably going to be, again, it's
  we're trying to provide an opportunity for everybody to
  have -- have an opportunity to do that -- to have -- to have
  an opportunity to elicit and challenge the conclusions and
  evidence relied upon by a particular witness if that's so
  necessary for their positions and how they believe the State
  Engineer should be evaluating the conclusions.
      But it's not going to be a free for all, and so
  we're going to be trying to balance that to the best of our
  ability.
      In terms of assigning the number of minutes per
  each party, I just don't -- I think that's just unduly
  impossible.  It's not going to happen at that point in time.
  So we're just going to have to work it out, and our -- our
  role and responsibility is to go ahead and try to manage the
  progress of the hearing to assure that the parties are all
  given an opportunity, you know, a fair opportunity.
      Yes, Mr. Flangas.
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      MR. FLANGAS: Alex Flangas, Nevada Cogeneration.
  In that vein, trying to be as efficient as possible, and given
  that there's going to be limited period of time for rebuttal,
  ultimate rebuttal, I'm contemplating the idea of whether the
  state would consider allowing cross-examination to be, for
  example, if a particular period of time was allowed for Nevada
  Cogeneration, whether my cross-examination could be by me or
  by my expert, specifically.
      Because, let's be candid, my expert may have
  questions that they can phrase right then on the spot better
  than I can phrase and I don't want to be sitting, consulting
  with my expert then asking a question, then consulting with my
  expert and asking a question and wasting time.
      At the same time, we all know in a courtroom,
  typically, you have one person that's allowed to
  cross-examine, not two, and this is not a courtroom.
      So I'm wondering if there's any thought given to
  whether the cross-examination could literally be by experts of
  experts which I see happen from the State quite often where
  the State's expert is the one doing the cross examining, not
  an attorney.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Mr. Flangas, I don't

  have an answer for that right off the top of my because we
  haven't contemplated that particular scenario, but something
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  we will certainly take under advisement and we can either
  address when we have the scheduling order or address that at
  the commencement of the proceedings on the 23rd.
      MR. DONNELLY: This is Patrick Donnelly, Center
  for Biological Diversity.  I would echo that.  I think that's
  a really important thing I think for our expert to do
  cross-examination.  If we could hear that in the order and not
  the day of the hearing, that would be very helpful.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So, I'm going to get

  to the timing, like the sequence of presentation of
  participant reports a little bit later.
      But I'm going to move to the hearing procedures
  and kind of other administrative matters that might then help
  inform some of the other sequence issues or the sequence
  concerns, questions.
      So, when the scheduling order setting the
  September 23rd hearing is issued, just let everyone know the
  scheduling order will come out the week of August 19th.  So,
  it will come out the week following the submission of rebuttal
  reports.
      And the scheduling order will include a list
  identifying all of the documents and records and evidence that
  the State Engineer will be taking administrative notice of for
  the purpose of the Order 1303 hearing.
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      So attached to the scheduling order is going to
  be an Exhibit and it's going to identify each and everyone of
  the documents and records that are currently before the State
  Engineer within the office of the State Engineer that he will
  be taking administrative notice of in advance of the Order
  1303 hearing.
      So the State Engineer is going to request that
  with the exception of reports and rebuttal reports that will
  be listed, those will also be listed on that list of the
  documents and evidence before the State Engineer that he is
  taking administrative notice of, any documents and evidence
  that is identified in that list not being reintroduced for the
  purpose of this hearing.
      So we would ask that the parties endeavor to the
  extent possible to refer back to those particular documents as
  the administrative record in this proceeding is already
  extremely voluminous and so we don't need a whole lot more
  redundancy of documents and records.
      Additionally, to the extent that any party has,
  any participant has any evidence that is not identified on
  that list for inclusion for the State Engineer's consideration
  in rendering his decisions in this particular matter, and that
  any participant intends to rely upon or believes to be
  relevant to the State Engineer's decision, we're asking that
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  the participant assure that such evidence is submitted prior
  to the comment of the hearing on September 23rd.
      So in short, what we're going to do is list out
  everything that we believe is part of our administrative
  record and what we're going to be taking administrative notice
  of for purposes of this hearing.
      And if there's something in there that you want
  to refer to, please feel free to refer to it.  If you need to
  provide excerpts of it, that's fine as well.  Certainly, some
  of these things are going to be quite voluminous.  Most of
  these documents and records are available on our website.
      But the other side if it, is if that's something
  that's not listed and you think it's important for our
  consideration, please get it in front of us before the
  hearing, and you're going to have an opportunity to go ahead
  and provide at that point in time.
      Yes, Mr. Taggart.
      MR. TAGGART: Thank you.  The -- will those
  documents on that list have document numbers, State Engineer
  documents on those already and start the exhibit numbering
  process at that point?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: We will have a -- we

  will have them marked out, yes.
      MR. TAGGART: Okay.
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      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: We'll have them Bate

  stamped and numbered out.
      MR. TAGGART: Okay.  And then will they be
  available, I think it's important that they be made available,
  and I don't want to burden your office more than it already
  is, but you know, if it was put on a website and all, not only
  is there the list, but then on a website someone could go in
  and every one of those documents is there on the website, then
  we don't have to serve everyone, or you don't have to serve
  everyone.
      Is that what you contemplate, or --
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: We're hoping to
  accomplish that.  Again, it's a very voluminous record at this
  point in time, and so hoping to get everything that ties in a
  formatted manner.
      I'll be completely candid with you, some it is a
  bunch data spread sheets and we're having a hard time getting
  those formatted into a mechanism that you can actually have
  them in a readable format.
      MR. TAGGART: Okay.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So to the extent where

  possible, we're trying to get everything into a digitized
  format and make it available.  So that's the intent that it
  will be available prior to September 23rd.
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      Is it all going to be available when we issue the
  scheduling order, probably not all of it because it's proving
  to be quite the task.
      So, we are endeavoring to do so, but it's going
  to -- it may not all be complete by the time that the
  scheduling order comes out.
      But it will be -- it will be coming up and it be
  will be part of our hearing under that news tab in LWRFS.
      MR. TAGGART: For -- I'm just exploring how this
  is going can work.  Is it possible that you could make things
  available here at your office if people wanted to come and
  look at it if it was just digital.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Um-hum.
      MR. TAGGART: And had you a hard time, you know,
  making it, replicating it for a PDF, then if it was available
  here for people to come look at, that might be one way of
  dealing with that.
      And so if there's additional documents, then we
  would provide those to your office and to who?  I guess, from
  a notice standpoint, how should we handle that?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Right.  So what we're

  going to do, and that's down a little bit --
      MR. TAGGART: Okay.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: -- disclosure of
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  witnesses and evidence.  And so we're going to establish a
  deadline for the parties to disclose their witnesses, the
  anticipated testimony and to exchange any documents and
  evidence and so -- and it's going to have to be shared amongst
  all the parties.
      MR. TAGGART: Okay.  And can I just clarify one
  thing, is that when we submit exhibits, they are intended to
  be documents that support our expert reports.  And will new
  expert opinions and new expert reports are not authorized to
  be submitted when exhibits are submitted?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Correct.
      MR. TAGGART: Okay.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: The expert reports,
  those deadlines are established pursuant to the order and the
  addendum to the order, or the amendment -- the amended order.
      MR. TAGGART: All right.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So, correct.  New
  expert reports or new rebuttal reports beyond those deadlines
  will not be accepted.
      The additional evidence is if there's supporting
  documentation for those things, you know, those things that
  are relevant to the point equally that you believe that the
  State Engineer should take it into consideration.
      But there -- the administrative record should be
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  relatively complete we believe, particularly with the
  inclusion of the expert report.
      But, somebody may have something out there that
  they think is incredibly important for us to consider that's
  not there, and so we want to make sure everybody is afforded
  an opportunity to get that in front of you prior to the
  commencement of the hearing so that the State Engineer can
  consider that as part of his decision making process.
      MR. ROBISON: Is there a definitive service list
  of who would be served with whatever additional documents we
  identify?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: It will be attached to

  the scheduling order.
      MR. ROBISON: Thank you.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So the scheduling
  order will establish that service list, and so then, just as
  everybody understands is we also have for the purposes is we
  have an email list which is really kind of a, more of an
  informal notification list, but for the purpose of the
  hearing, the scheduling order will have a service list
  attached to it.
      MR. FLANGAS: Service meaning mailing?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Mailing, yes.
      MR. ROBISON: Does email suffice?
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      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Currently our
  administrative regulations don't recognize electronic service,
  however the parties are free to go ahead and -- I mean, so --
  so mail is technically the appropriate form of service.
      If it was a smaller, you know, a smaller pool of
  participants, I think I would encourage people to go ahead and
  come up with their own stipulation regarding e-Service, and
  certainly if people want to endeavor to do that, I'm going to
  leave that to you all.
      But for the purposes of this hearing, our current
  regulatory structure, it's good old fashioned United States
  mail.
      MR. ROBISON: Then the date for disclosure
  becomes increasingly important.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Correct.
      MR. ROBISON: Thank you.
      MR. TAGGART: Could we just ask the room if
  people are willing to agree to e-Service?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: I guess I could go
  ahead and ask it this way.  Is there anybody who objects to
  utilizing e-Service based upon the emails that we have been
  using to communicate with parties?
      MS. PELLEGRINO: Just the list on the order?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.
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      THE COURT REPORTER: I don't know who spoke.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Colby Pellegrino.
      MS. PELLEGRINO: Colby Pellegrino.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Well so you know, what

  we'll do is on the scheduling order, we will also provide that
  email list.  And so the parties are free to exchange via email
  having heard no objection to do so.
      Mr. Flangas?
      MR. FLANGAS: I just like to make sure that I get
  added.  I haven't been on that list and I don't know why.  So,
  that's -- I keep getting things from my expert.  My expert's
  on the list, but I am not.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: You will be added to

  it now, Mr. Flangas.
      MR. FLANGAS: Thank you very much.  I appreciate
  it.
      MR. MOORE: Yeah, this is Andy Moore, City of
  North Las Vegas.  Could I get added too, because the
  individual that is with the City that's on there is no longer
  with the City.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: And if there's any
  participants today that is not our service list, please feel
  free to email us and we will make sure that you are added to
  our service list and that's the best way of doing it.
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      SPEAKER ON SPEAKER PHONE: The best contact,
  ma'am?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: The best contact will

  be, go ahead and do it to mfairbank, F as in Frank,
  A-I-R-B-A-N-K @ water.nv.gov.  And so that's my email address,

  Micheline Fairbank with the Division of Water Resources.
      So moving to that next question which is the
  disclosure of the witnesses and evidence is indicated to be
  relied on.  So, obviously, we're going to have the expert
  reports, those would have already been submitted.
      I was contemplating two weeks prior to the
  commencement of the hearing for the disclosure of witnesses
  and any evidence.
      Does that seem to be a reasonable period of time
  for the participants?
      MR. TAGGART: Again, Paul Taggart for SNWA.  We
  were hoping September 3rd which would three weeks in advance

  which would give us more times to prepare for other sides'
  cases.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Does anybody have any

  thought or feedback with regards to moving it to
  September 3rd?
      I'm certainly supportive of that if that's going
  to help in terms of structuring the hearing to be more
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  efficient and allow the parties to be more succinct and
  focused in terms of their examination and cross-examination of
  the witnesses.
      MR. ROBISON: So, the scheduling order is coming
  out approximately August 19th?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: It will come out some

  time the week of the 19th.
      MR. ROBISON: So that would give us three weeks
  to determine what has to be added?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Correct.  Having --
  I'm hearing no objection?  Yes.
      MR. MOORE: I mean, I just want to clarify that.
  Again, Andy Moore.  You looked at the September 3rd would give

  you two weeks; right?  If it's the 19th.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: No, you're correct,
  that is, that's two weeks.
      MR. ROBISON: Yep, two.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Plus the time that you

  got right now.
      MS. PETERSON: This is Karen Peterson.  How about
  the end of that week?  That's September 3rd.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: September 6th?  I'm

  fine with that.  Okay.  So we will set the date --
      MR. TAGGART: We're fine with that as well.
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      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So, September 6th will

  be the deadline for the disclosure of witnesses, including
  their anticipated testimony and any additional exhibits the
  parties intend to submit for the State Engineer's
  consideration beyond those identified within the
  administrative record.
      One other kind of witness issue I wanted to go
  ahead and address with the parties.  Is the State Engineer has
  already qualified numerous individuals as experts before the
  office in the State Engineer.
      And in an effort to go ahead and eliminate a lot
  of voir dire and qualification of witnesses which can take a
  substantial amount of time, the State Engineer also intends to
  go through the different -- as we're going through the expert
  reports, we're looking at those individual experts.
      And once we get the disclosures, any individual
  who has already been qualified by the State Engineer as an
  expert in the particular discipline in which they're being
  offered to testify, we will take administrative notice that
  they've been qualified as an expert.
      We don't -- if we've already found that they've
  been qualified to serve as an expert witness in that
  particular discipline before our office and prior proceedings,
  we're going to go ahead and allow that.
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      Unless any party has a compelling reason as to
  why we should expend the amount of time qualifying each and
  every witness that has already been done so before our office.
      And then if there's individuals who have been
  identified as a witness, one of the things that I wanted to
  kind of address with the parties this morning is potential
  concept is to establish a date prior to the commencement of
  the September 3rd hearing to just go ahead and run through
  expert qualification and allow parties to go ahead.
      And if we have an individual who is submitted a
  report and it's going to be called or relied upon to testify
  as an expert, and they're not already qualified before our
  office in their discipline is to set a pre -- a pre date,
  probably the week before and allow the parties to go ahead and
  produce their witnesses for the purposes of qualifying.
      And so that way then when we start the hearing on
  September 23rd, we don't have to go through that process of
  qualifying experts and voir dire and such.
      It's a little bit of a different process, but
  we're also trying to determine efficiency, and so just trying
  to explore different ideas.  Patrick?
      MR. DONNELLY: Patrick Donnelly, Center for
  Biological Diversity.  Is there a statutory or regulatory
  definition of expert?
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      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Generally, we're going

  to offer, we're going to go through the -- while the rules of
  evidence in civil procedure don't strictly apply, that's what
  we rely upon in terms of, you know, the standard -- the
  standard roles for qualification of experts.
      MR. DONNELLY: Is that NRS, or --
      MR. ROBISON: NRS 48.
      MR. DONNELLY: Thank you.
      MR. ROBISON: Would the State Engineer consider a
  date by which all parties exchange the CVs, statement of
  qualifications for the experts to see which if any are going
  to be subject to a challenge?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: We could set that for

  September 6th as well.
      MR. ROBISON: Thank you.
      MR. TAGGART: Will that -- I don't -- I don't
  disagree, necessarily.  I'm just exploring this idea.  Is we
  could also in our witness statements, our witness list,
  identify when, or if that individual has been qualified
  previously by the State Engineer and in what discipline so
  everyone knows.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Um-hum.
      MR. TAGGART: And then we know which ones are
  not.  And then we can all decide, okay, is this someone that
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  we will challenge or not challenge.  So that's, I think it's
  just an add on to what Mr. Robinson is saying.
      MR. ROBISON: I agree, but the CV has to be
  disclosed so we know what the qualifications are.
      MR. TAGGART: Sure.  I would expect the CV would
  be part of the exhibits.
      MR. ROBISON: That was my request.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Then we'll go ahead

  and include that.  And that way, then if, there's any
  objection or concern with respect to the qualification, if an
  individual has not been previously qualified before the State
  Engineer, then do we want -- are the parties, participants, is
  this an appetite for trying to go ahead and pre-qualify those
  experts prior to the commencement of the hearing the 23rd?
      MR. TAGGART: I think it's a great idea.  I just
  think there's some procedural, you know, issues, we got to let
  you know whether we are going to make a challenge.  Like we
  have to have a time to decide whether we're going to make that
  challenge.  We have to alert you to that and then you have to
  be able to schedule the time for it.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So -- so, what I'm
  thinking, is just looking, and if we schedule the time for
  parties so within the scheduling order to present a challenge
  to a particular expert being qualified in their discipline, if

Min-U-Script® Capitol Reporters
775-882-5322

(11) Pages 41 - 44

SE ROA 530
JA_000261



State of Nevada 
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources August 8, 2019

Page 45

  we set a deadline within the scheduling order for that.
      And then also in the scheduling order establish a
  date for that qualification hearing for any objected to
  experts, and then we can always vacate that qualifying hearing
  date if necessary.
      So, let's go ahead and have objections to any
  submitted or proffered expert.  Objections to be submitted to
  the State Engineer no later than the close of business on
  September 13th.
      And then let me double check, and then I just
  want to see for location.  And then 9:00 a.m., September 20th
  which will be the Friday before the commencement of the
  hearing, for a hearing on any challenged experts.
      And that will be here at the Tahoe Hearing Room.
  Yes?
      MR. FAHMY: Peter Fahmy for the National Park
  Service.  Is it possible that experts could have been
  qualified in other jurisdictions and other administrative or
  judicial proceedings.
      And I was wondering whether the State Engineer's
  office would consider, given it's going to have the CVs and
  this information contained in the expert witness reports,
  could make a judgment at that time whether that he or she
  believes that that expert is qualified and therefore dispense
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  with the need for this challenge hearing.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So, I think it's -- so
  what I am a thinking is part of that September 6th exchange of
  witnesses and identification of experts, as well as providing
  in the scheduling order, we'll set this out is to identify the
  qualifications and where those individuals have been
  previously qualified as an expert, and then the parties can go
  ahead and review that.  And then I think if -- I'm hoping
  people will be reasonable, but --
      MR. TAGGART: I'll just offer that I think we
  would all take that into consideration, but in the past, it
  isn't an automatic you're qualified in the State Engineer's
  office because you were qualified in the Federal District
  Court of, you know, Eastern Illinois or something.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Correct.
      MR. TAGGART: So, I think that we would certainly
  take that into account when looking at a CV if someone's been
  qualified in three other jurisdictions on the same topic, that
  would certainly go to the merit of whether we can challenge
  them.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: And I -- because I
  think we're going to an allow the parties to go ahead and
  present their, proffer their experts and provide the
  qualifications and demonstration that they should be qualified
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  as an expert.
      Certainly, I think the expectation of the parties
  are reasonable, but I think we're going -- I'm going to keep
  that hearing date and so that we can address those particular
  concerns, because there maybe subjective basis for the people
  to challenge the particular qualification of a particular
  expert.
      MR. ROBISON: Does the scheduling order include
  the names of experts pre-qualified with the State Engineer?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: The scheduling order

  will direct the parties as part of the exchange of witnesses
  on September 6th to identify the name of every expert they
  intend to call, provide the support for their qualifications,
  where they have previously been qualified.  If they've been
  qualified before the State Engineer.
      And to provide their CVs so that the parties can
  then make a determination by that September 13th day as to
  whether or not to challenge any of those individuals.
      And if an individual has already been qualified
  in that particular discipline before the State Engineer, then
  those individuals will -- the State Engineer will recognize
  those individuals as already being qualified as experts before
  this office.
      MR. ROBISON: Thank you.
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      MS. PETERSON: This is Karen Peterson, sorry.  Is
  there any way we could have that hearing on the 19th?  I have
  a conflict on the 20th and so does Dylan Frehner.
      MS. CAVIGLIA: And this is Justina Caviglia.  I
  have the same conflict as Ms. Peterson.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes, we can do it on

  the 19th.  So the hearing the date will be moved from the 20th
  of September to the 19th of September.
      MS. GLASGOW: One last point.  Karen Glasgow for
  the Park Service.  With respect to the 9/'19 hearing, can we
  participate by telephone?  Can somebody participate by
  telephone rather than in person?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.  And, optimally,

  I'm going to be optimistic that our whole new system with the
  video-conferencing will be up and running by then.  And there
  might actually be an opportunity for you to participate via
  video-conference from remote from your location.
      So, but we'll allow telephonic appearances for
  that hearing on the 19th.  And we will keep everyone posted
  for video capacity as well.
      We should -- the new system is supposed to allow
  us to be able to stream on line and people can actually tie in
  and appear as long as they have at appropriate equipment and
  their end through the webcast as well, so -- so we'll see.
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  Yes, fingers crossed.  We're -- Water Resources is moving into
  the 20th century.
      MS. PETERSON: This is Karen Peterson.  So with
  the expert that is being challenged would be present in Carson
  City, though?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.
      MS. PETERSON: Okay.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: We would need that in

  order for them to be able to examined, yes.
      MS. PETERSON: Okay.
      MR. TAGGART: Can I ask another clarifying
  question about the witness list?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes, Mr. Taggart.
      MR. TAGGART: Based on everything you've been
  about saying restricting this to the topics, and in the
  interim order, my understanding is the witness list should
  only have individuals who actually submitted a report.  And so
  I think it's -- it would be prudent to indicate whether that's
  correct.
      Otherwise, are we going -- is it possible we're
  going to have witnesses who are going to offer expert opinions
  who have not submitted a report at all?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: If they are being
  proffered as an expert, they should have offered -- they
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  should have had a report or rebuttal report submitted.
      So, if they're going to be proffered as an
  expert, they're going to be in relation to a report that has
  been submitted.
      I'm not going to opine as to whether or not
  people may have non-expert individuals in who they intend to
  call to testify as to testify or relate into other elements of
  their reports.
      But those would not be testifying as an expert
  with respect to those opinions that have been submitted to the
  office.
      MR. DONNELLY: Patrick Donnelly, Center for
  Biological Diversity.  This is somewhat related to this and
  also goes back to an earlier thing.  The qualifications for
  cross-examiners, we are questioning whether an expert would be
  able to do that?  Will, I mean, will I be able to do that as a
  non-attorney?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So, the -- you know,

  in terms of appearance before the State Engineer, you're not
  required to have an attorney.  If you have an attorney who is
  representing a participant or a party, then the attorney has
  to go ahead and be either, you know, pro hoc admitted for our
  office pursuant to Nevada Supreme Court rules, or be a
  licensed attorney in the State of Nevada.  But there's no
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  requirement that an individual be represented by an attorney.
      So if a party or participant is representing
  themselves, that's permitted within the -- before the office
  of the State Engineer.
      With respect -- like I said, we will address a
  particular question about allowing experts cross-examine.  I
  -- that's something that I'm going to have to -- we're going
  to have to take under advisement and decide how we want to
  proceed with that particular question.
      Yes?
      MS. PELLEGRINO: I just -- as you can consider
  that question, I don't necessarily agree with experts
  cross-examining experts, but I -- I strongly feel it should
  only be one person that's allowed to examine them, having been
  through --
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: I appreciate that.
      MR. TAGGART: So, just so I'm clear about the
  question I asked before, because I don't want to end up
  getting into a big side show on whether someone is qualified
  to testify.
      But if we get witness lists and there's people on
  those lists that are going to offer expert opinions, but they
  don't have a report, we're going to object to them being able
  to testify because we don't have a report.
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      That's pretty elementary now.  If someone wants
  to come up and give that testimony, I think I'm hearing you
  say that may be allowed, it may not, we will see.  It still
  has to be tied to the - by the inquiries that were listed in
  the order?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: That is correct.
      MR. TAGGART: Okay.  And then one other question
  about that.  We're -- we're going to get rebuttal reports.  We
  anticipate those will be rebuttal reports.  It won't be new
  reports.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Correct.
      MR. TAGGART: It won't be individuals who didn't
  file an initial report, but waited to see what everyone else's
  initial reports were going to look like and then now they're
  going to file their industry report.
      So these rebuttal reports should be confined to
  rebutting, pointing to a statement in an existing report and
  addressing whether they agree or disagree with that statement.
      As opposed to developing an entire new level of
  methodology, or entire new level of opinion that we have not
  had a chance to rebut and would not have a chance to rebut
  until the hearing.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Correct.  That's the
  intent.  The rebuttal report, if people want to go ahead and
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  challenge the opinions or the data or the conclusions relied
  upon by the parties who submitted initial reports, that's of
  the purpose of the rebuttal reports is to go ahead and
  challenge that.
      You're absolutely correct, the intent for the
  rebuttal reports is not to go ahead and have them be
  independent reports with new conclusions.
      MR. TAGGART: Thank you.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So, and -- and, you
  know, just to make it clear too for those parties who are
  either submitting or contemplating submitting rebuttal
  reports, that those reports really should be, you know,
  substantive enough to stand on their own in the sense of being
  -- having, you know, being tethered to data that they're
  relying on that contradicts or undermines conclusions that
  they believe other people have, you know, that they believe to
  undermine or contradict conclusions and evidence relied upon
  by other parties.
      The reports, you know -- so the idea is that the
  hearing is not an opportunity for people to go ahead and
  provide the substantive detail to support the reports.  The
  reports should have enough substance and merit to them to
  stand on their own.
      And, again, that's why we say too, if a party has
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  submitted a report or a rebuttal report and they feel -- and
  they don't believe that they need to go ahead and participate
  in the hearing, we're happy to take -- we will take every
  single document that is submitted to us.
      These reports and rebuttal reports, they will be
  taken under consideration by the State Engineer.  That's --
  we're not going to ignore participants' reports just because
  they don't participate in the hearing.
      It's just we're providing an opportunity for
  people to provide some testimony and to point us in the
  direction as to why, you know, what -- what they believe we
  should be really focusing on within their particular
  conclusions and opinions?
      MS. GLASGOW: Question?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.
      MS. GLASGOW: Karen Glasgow, Park Service.  To
  that point of testifying or offering an opinion up front on a
  given day, like the Park Service has been given over to week
  one a whole day.
      If the Park Service chooses not to make a
  presentation because for -- they want to stand on what they've
  already written, will that preclude them, however, from
  participating in cross-examination of other people's
  presentations --
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      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: -- no --
      MS. GLASGOW: -- or witnesses --
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: -- it would not
  preclude.  So, just because somebody doesn't want to -- so,
  you know, because this is, you know, it's kind of funny using
  vernacular that doesn't necessarily fit this really well.
      But just because a participant doesn't want to
  put on a case-in-chief, doesn't preclude them if they
  submitted reports, and they submitted -- it doesn't preclude
  them from participating in any capacity if they don't want to
  -- you know, we certainly encouraging efficiency to the extent
  possible.
      MS. GLASGOW: Thank you.
      MS. PETERSON: I have a question.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.
      MS. PETERSON: So what if there's somebody who
  wants to cross-examine the Park Service and their conclusions
  in their report, I think they have to have their witness
  available for cross-examination.
      They may not want to put on a direct case, but
  they have to allow the parties an opportunity to cross-examine
  them.
      MR. FLANGAS: Good point.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: No, I think you're
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  right.  I think you're absolutely right.  If somebody's going
  to -- I think that's fair that they would have to make -- I
  think we would have to make -- if they're going to
  participate, they would have to make their witness available
  or their expert available.
      MS. PETERSON: If they want you to consider their
  report, yes.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: No.  No.  I don't know

  that it -- if somebody submitted a report to us, we're going
  to take that under advisement whether or not they participate.
      If you want -- if you believe a participant has
  submitted a report, and that -- then that's your opportunity
  to have your rebuttal reports to go ahead and challenge the
  evidence and the data relied upon by somebody, because I mean,
  the idea -- this is an opportunity for people to go ahead and
  present their evidence and also challenge conclusions that are
  present by the parties.
      And you don't necessarily have to cross-examine
  that particular participant's expert in order to challenge the
  conclusions.  You can do that through your own expert as well.
      MR. FLANGAS: Excuse me.  Doesn't the State
  Engineer have an administrative rule that says, if the witness
  doesn't show up, it will not be considered.  I believe there's
  a rule in your -- in your procedures that says that.
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      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: I mean, we do have an

  admit, but at the same time, we're also encouraging
  efficiency, and the idea here is to allow people an
  opportunity, and allow people to also challenge the
  conclusions.
      But at the same time, we have people that have
  submitted, you know, quite, you know, somewhat limited
  submissions to our office.
      And to require those participants to go ahead
  and, you know, I mean obviously the intent is people, if they
  want us to take it seriously or if they have substantive types
  of dialogue, I think there's an opportunity.
      Mr. Fahmy?
      MR. FAHMY: Yes.  Peter Fahmy for the National
  Park Service.  I would question, you know, whether there's a
  right to question an expert witness for the parties that
  submitted these reports.  I mean, that's what the rebuttal
  report is for is to basically rebut whatever is contained in
  the initial reports.
      Now, there may be some validity in the fact that
  you might want to be able to question what's contained in the
  rebuttal report, but it -- that would be extremely limited, I
  would think.
      So, I don't think there is a fairness issue here
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  with regards to not being able to examine that witness.
      MS. PETERSON: I would disagree -- Karen.  I
  would disagree.  I mean, you can't lob a grenade in there and
  then not expect to ask questions about it.  And so, I think if
  they want -- I think they have to have their witness here for
  cross-examination.
      And maybe we can let people know in advance if
  there's not going to be any cross-examination, but until we
  see the rebuttal report.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Ms. Glasgow.
      MS. GLASGOW: To the point of -- and less in
  these witness reports or witness lists, you're asking the
  parties also to identify not just who they're just going to
  bring, but every other witness of every other participant that
  they might want to cross-examine, I don't have any idea of who
  they want to talk to.
      I mean, I might able to decide that this witness
  or this expert or the not this other one, but that's leaving
  everything to chance.  Because what if I don't bring the one
  that they're wanting to talk to, and I don't -- I mean, I --
      If you're going to make a ruling that I have to
  bring somebody that they want to talk to, then you at some
  point have to decide tell me who that might be so that we have
  some opportunity to do that.
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      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Correct.
      MR. HERRERA: Brad Herrera.  Won't we know after
  the witness lists are submitted who the parties are planning
  to put on.  At that time, if you see someone that you are
  wanting to cross isn't on one of those lists you can let the
  party know that?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: But what would the

  resolution be?
      MR. HERRERA: I think they would have to be
  available for cross as we discussed earlier.  But, at that
  point, we would at least know who the parties are planning to
  call and who they are not.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Mr. Donnelly.
      MR. DONNELLY: Patrick Donnelly.  Speaking now as
  a board member of the Great Basin Water Network, as an
  organization with no budget and cannot proffer someone to
  stand for testimony, however, they submitted a report, it
  should be considered by the State Engineer.
      There's a matter, I think, of equity there if the
  report is disregarded.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So let's go ahead and

  take a short --
      MR. TAGGART: Can I just add one thing.  I think
  that the question of whether or not cross-examine is required
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  before a report gets submitted, I don't honestly know the
  answer what a Judge would say, but you get rid of that issue
  all together if you just went with what Miss Peterson said.
      And you just said, if you want -- if you the gone
  to the meetings of the Public Utilities Commission, that's
  exactly how they do it.  You submit your report.  Actually,
  you submit written direct exam.  And then you just have the
  witness proffered for cross.  And then there may not be any
  cross questions, then you're done.
      But, if you don't do that, I think you are
  leaving open a question of is it sufficient to have rebuttal
  opportunities -- rebuttal opportunities sufficient.  I don't
  think we really know the answer to that question.
      So, the only thing I would offer is the safest
  route is to go with the cross-exam to just avoid that
  potential appealable issue.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Let's go ahead and
  take about a ten-minute break and we'll go ahead and take a
  recess.
      (Recess.)
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Okay.  Let's go ahead

  and get going.  Back on the record.  All right.  So any
  individual -- so, basically, how we're going to resolve the
  concern about having an opportunity to cross-examine
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  witnesses, and we agree that it is, you know, a full and fair
  opportunity for people to have you know to challenge evidence
  that's going to be relied upon by parties and submitted to the
  State Engineer.
      So the proffering party may submit that -- submit
  their report without direct testimony of -- for any report,
  however, any individual who offered an expert report submitted
  to the State Engineer must be made available for
  cross-examination.
      So we're going to have those windows and we're
  going to submit that and the scheduling order will establish
  the time frames.
      So -- so, we're going to have to go ahead and if
  they've authored -- so, if they're authored and identified as
  an author of a report or rebuttal report, they're going to
  have to be made available for cross-examination.
      MS. PETERSON: Thank you.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.
      MS. GLASGOW: But what is made available mean?
  Do you mean I have them sit here, or do you mean I have to
  have somebody tell me, please bring that person, I want to
  talk to them.
      Karen Glasgow, NPS.  Because, I, like him, we
  just don't have money to have people sitting around on the
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  chance that somebody wants to talk to them.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So -- so, for the day

  that you are scheduled, so if a party is scheduled and they
  want to go ahead and submit their report without direct
  testimony on that particular day, that particular author of
  that expert report is going to have to be available.
      So they don't have to sit here for the entire
  period of time, but they're going to have to be available on
  that particular day.
      And so -- so, just kind of jumping ahead a little
  bit in some of the procedure and scheduling.  The idea is
  we're going to have be having on going communications and
  ongoing dialogs at the beginning of the day and end of day,
  what's going on tomorrow.
      So if, for example, you're up for the next -- the
  following day.  The prior day we're going to have people
  planning on cross-examining and perhaps at that point in time
  somebody's going to say no, nobody in tends to cross-examine
  that particular individual and so we can go ahead and resolve
  those particular issues.
      But at this point in time, we are going to have
  to make -- if somebody submitted a report, they don't have to
  submit -- they don't have to present for direct testimony, but
  that individual does have to be available for
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  cross-examination.
      Yes?
      MR. FAHMY: Peter Fahmy for the National Park
  Service.  When you say, "authored a report", which report are
  you referring to precisely?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: If you submitted -- if

  the initial report or a rebuttal report.
      MR. FAHMY: Okay.  So with regards to the --
  oftentimes reports are not authored by one individual, they
  are authored by a number of individuals.  Do we have to make
  all those individuals available?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: If they are identified

  as the as the individual who is signing off on the report or
  submitting the report, and I'll use for an example -- so for
  example, City of North Las Vegas submitted their expert report
  and it's identified Dwight Smith and Alexa Turrell as the
  authors of the report.
      So those are the individuals that the State
  Engineer is expecting to be available for cross-examination if
  the City of North Las Vegas did not intend to present those
  individuals for direct examination on their behalf.
      So that's -- so it's those individuals who have
  submitted the reports to the State Engineer.
      MR. DONNELLY: Patrick Donnelly, Center for
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  Biological Diversity.  On behalf of Great Basin Water Network,
  I'm going to register an objection to this.
      Order 1303 should have specified that witnesses
  would be mandatory to be made available as a condition of
  submitting a report.
      Order 1303 did not specify that, and so just
  registering an objection to that.  And then, I guess, I have a
  question.  Could the same expert be here for two different
  entities?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: If they're preparing
  reports on behalf of two different entities, then yes, if they
  submitted a report, then that's -- yes?
      MR. MOORE: Andy Moore, City of North Las Vegas.
  On the example you just read about the report that we
  submitted, I mean, would they -- the City need to have both of
  them present or just one?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: As they're the author,

  I think they have to both be present to the extent that they
  submitted they signed off on the report.
      MR. TAGGART: And do all reports have to be
  signed by an expert?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Well --
      MR. TAGGART: -- or --
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: No.  I mean, I'm not
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  going to go back, Paul -- Mr. Taggart, I'm not going to go
  back and start going through all of these.
      And so if the reports identify particular
  individuals who submitted the reports.  Whether or not there's
  a signature on it, I'm not going to go back and have people
  try to go back into different types of things.
      So, if we have documents, we have reports that
  were submitted as initial reports and they have identified
  individuals as being authors, those are the individuals that
  the State Engineer is considering to be the authors of those
  reports and have to be available for cross-examination.
      If they're not being presented by those
  particular participants as the primary, you know, as they're
  -- if they're not being produced for their own particular
  interests in presenting testimony on behalf of their client.
      All right.  So, we're going to go ahead and move
  on.  All right.  So, initially, earlier when I was talking
  about the timing and the duration of the hearing and how the
  State Engineer's evaluating or considering structuring this
  particular hearing, we established kind of different -- a
  different order.
      Mr. Robison had asked whether or not that was
  intended to kind of -- or if that was a preliminary kind of
  listing of the planned order of the participants.
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      And so, again, to kind of go through that.  We
  had it listed out as the Moapa Band of Indians.  Then the
  National Park Service.  The U.S. Fish and Wild Life Service.
  Coyote Springs Investments.  The Southern Nevada Water
  Authority.  Moapa Valley Water District.  Then Vidler, Lincoln
  County.  The City of North Las Vegas.  Centers for Biologic
  Diversity.  Dry Lake Water, and the other participants on
  their report.  Great Basin Water Network.  Technichrome.  And
  then the rebuttal report submissions.  So you will only submit
  rebuttal reports.
      Is there any -- anybody have any strong concern
  with going with that order?
      MR. DONNELLY: Patrick Donnelly, Center for
  Biological Diversity.  I would request since we have a half
  day plus and Great Basin Water Network has a short amount of
  time that we could combine that and be one date.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Okay.
      MR. DONNELLY: Thank you.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Mr. Robison?
      MR. ROBISON: Are the interests of the Park
  Service and Wild Life so similar they can take one?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: They submitted
  separate reports.  I certainly would have to defer that to
  them, but they've submitted reports as separate entities.
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      So I don't know if the National Park Service and
  Fish and Wildlife Service believes that they can combine their
  presentations into a single day.
      I'm seeing shakes of the head, so I'm going to
  take that as a no.
      Yes?
      MS. BALDWIN: Beth Baldwin, Moapa Band of
  Paiutes.  Our experts have expressed a preference not go
  first.  They would like to go later in the order.
      MR. ROBISON: We'll go first.  We'll trade.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Okay.
      MR. ROBISON: We'll trade up to Monday.
      MS. BALDWIN: Thanks.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: All right.
      MR. ROBISON: Thank you.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: All right.  So -- so
  that's essentially what we're going to do.  Again, I'm going
  to take under advisement the request by the Moapa Valley Water
  District to have more time than a half day.  How -- Mr.
  Morrison, how long do you think you guys --
      MR. MOORE: I think, looking at this proposed
  order, I think we're comfortable with it, and I don't know
  that we're going to need more than that half day.  So I'll
  withdraw to the extent it was an objection.
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      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Okay.  Mr. Taggart,

  with respect to Southern Nevada Water Authority, how much time

  do you guys really think you're going to need based upon,
  after the dialogue today?
      MR. TAGGART: Still a day and a half.  So we'll
  take Mr. Morrison's half day.
      MS. GLASGOW: Karen Glasgow
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.
      MS. GLASGOW: With the National Park Service.  So
  one of the questions -- one of the things that you indicated
  was a desire that people listen to each other and decide that
  some other person has asked that question and that information
  is out there and thus decide they don't need to do that
  themselves.
      To that extent, would not the order benefit from
  people who have similar things going, you know, who have
  similar conclusions going one after the other to avoid, you
  know, like if you ask -- if, say, the Park and Fish had the
  same sort of attitudes and we were, day after day, or next to
  each other, that would allow everyone who might have wanted to

  ask questions of either or both to see oh, they already asked
  those questions of the Park Service, we don't really have to
  ask them of Fish and Wildlife Service.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: And that was part of
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  our rationale in how we organized the particular -- that was
  part of the rationale in how we ordered the different
  participants, and when I laid it out was -- that's why I had
  National Park Service and Fish and Wild Life Service adjoining
  days was so that -- with that in mind.
      But then we're also trying to keep the full day,
  those -- those participants and reports that we anticipate
  that we're going to take a full day during the first week and
  then those ones that would be -- have less of a time
  commitment during the second.
      MR. MOORE: Andy Moore, City of North Las Vegas.
  Can I just make sure that -- I know -- I think it's going to
  be early in that second week based on the scheduling
  structure, but I just want to make sure that we don't get
  assigned to October 4th of that week, because our expert is
  not available, and I don't want to start opening it up to that
  stuff, but I wanted to clarify that and put it on the record.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: No.  Absolutely, we'll

  accommodate that.
      MR. MOORE: Thank you.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: All right.  Yes, Mr.
  Donnelly?
      MR. DONNELLY: Patrick Donnelly on behalf of
  Great Basin Water Network at the moment.  I think I want to
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  get back into what qualifies as an expert?
      Are we setting up a situation where the only way
  you can participate in this is if you have a PHD level
  hydrologist as representing you which is somewhat
  exclusionary.
      You know, for instance, for the water network,
  right.  The water network submitted a report that asserts a
  position.  It is backed up by many, many years of data over a
  different proceeding.
      The water network may or may not have funds or
  ability to procure the expert who wrote those opinions years
  and years ago for this.
      So, otherwise, the -- for instance, the executive
  director of the water network would be the one to appear since
  apparently it's mandated that someone appear?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So, since -- so, for
  the purpose of Great Basin Water Network, Mr. Roerink was the

  individual who submitted the report.  If he's going to be
  proffered as an expert, he has to go ahead and identify what
  his qualifications are.
      If his qualifications is he's an expert in
  economics, I mean there's different types of experts.  So, you
  know -- or if he's being offered as the author of that
  particular report, but not being offered as an expert in any
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  particular field, he still can go ahead and if necessary, be
  proffered for that purpose as the author of that particular
  statement and position and he would be subject to
  cross-examination based upon that.
      MR. DONNELLY: Okay, thank you.  Thanks.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: All right.  So -- so,
  we will -- so the week of August 16th -- the week of
  August 19th, excuse me, we will go ahead and issue the
  scheduling order.
      So the order is going to be similarly, we're
  going to swap Coyote Spring Investment with the Moapa Tribe.
  So we're going to go ahead and swap that.  We're going to then
  get everyone scheduled out in that order that I've identified.
  And if we're looking that we're probably going to have --
      So for the rebuttal reports, it's probably going
  to be extremely limited, but like I said, you know, in terms
  of that time period because the rebuttal reports, if
  individuals had only submitted a rebuttal report, we're only
  offering the amount of time to allow individuals to basically
  just kind of set forth, you know, to the extent necessary the
  basis for what those opinions, but it's limited to that
  rebuttal component.
      And so we're going to go ahead and set that.
  Like I said, once we get all the rebuttal reports in, while
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  we're going to endeavor to have the hearing conclude on
  October 4th, and we will not set City of North Las Vegas on
  October 4th, just the parties anticipate that it may continue
  on into the week of October 7th.
      And so -- but we will endeavor to finish the
  hearing as early in that week as possible.  And, again, we're
  going to go ahead and promote efficiency.
      So, are there any other questions or procedural
  questions with respect to the hearing or other matters that we
  need to address this morning?
      Yes, Mr. Taggart.
      MR. TAGGART: Paul Taggart for SNWA.  One is, is
  this room big enough?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So, I -- so, we will
  probably have it at the legislative building.  So just to be
  completely candid with everyone, I wanted to see how full the
  room was today.
      Also knowing that we were going to have
  video-conferencing capabilities and people would be able to
  view the hearing if we held it in this room in September on
  the internet.  So not everybody has to be in the room at the
  same time.
      But based upon the participation today,
  recognizing that not all of the experts and not all of the

Min-U-Script® Capitol Reporters
775-882-5322

(18) Pages 69 - 72

SE ROA 537
JA_000268



State of Nevada 
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources August 8, 2019

Page 73

  individuals, people are going to want to accompany them are
  here today, we're going to look to have it at probably the
  legislative building.
      Just so that everybody -- all the participants do
  please recognize and know, when, if we do it, we're also
  intending, regardless of where the hearing is held, and like I
  said it will likely be at the legislative building.
      It will also be broadcast to a location in
  Southern Nevada.  So that individuals who want to attend the
  hearing and observe the hearing don't have to travel to Carson
  City.
      And that's also making it available to those
  community members within the Low White River Flow System
  affected basins to be able to participate without having to
  travel to Carson City.  So we'll be able to take public
  comment from both the north and the south.
      Yes?
      MR. MORRISON: Greg Morrison, Moapa Valley Water
  District.  Just kind of a 10,000 foot question about how this
  moves forward after we do the hearing on the questions from
  Order 1303.
      Obviously, the ultimate order that's going to
  come down in the Lower White River Flow System is going to
  involve more than just science, when the does the State
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  Engineer's office anticipate considering evidence that isn't
  just scientific in nature?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: So, that will probably

  follow once we get a decision rendered in this particular
  proceeding.  And then we have -- and then we will start moving
  on until we get those threshold consequence answered, then we
  can start moving on to some of those other --
      MR. MORRISON: Sure.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: -- probably more
  challenging issues that we have to grapple with.
      MR. MORRISON: The reason why --
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: What I will say is the

  State Engineer, while we're not statutorily obligated in this
  particular proceeding, the State Engineer is committed to
  having a decision rendered in not more than 240 days.
      Even though we don't have a statutory -- you
  know, we are not statutory bound to that time frame, we're
  going to go ahead and adopt that time frame.  And certainly we
  endeavor to get it done well in advance of that, but, again,
  as I mentioned, we have a voluminous record.
      There's a lot of testimony.  We're going to have
  to go back through all the evidence and testimony and reports
  and have careful consideration of what ultimate decisions are
  rendered.
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      So that's kind of a loose time frame, I know it's
  not very specific, but --
      MR. MORRISON: That's okay.  Confirming it's on
  the radar.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.  And we're -- we

  recognize that there's a lot of different components in the
  decisions that come out of this particular proceeding are
  going to have significant effects in terms of how we go ahead
  and proceed on the moving forward basis in terms of people's
  viewpoints and what conclusions are made.
      And so that -- and what impacts that may have on
  stakeholders is certainly going to be, you know, something
  that we want to -- we're cognitive of.
      And so we're trying to be as timely as possible
  with while still doing, you know, practicing good, scientific
  analysis in relying on supported data to render ultimate
  decisions.
      MR. MORRISON: Great.  Thanks.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: There was a question

  in the back.  Yes?
      MR. MILLER: Luke Miller with the Office of the
  Solister, Department of the Interior working under Fish and
  Wildlife Service.  I was looking at my notes trying to see if
  I missed anything in relation to possibly honing down the
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  issues that might be presented on a day if we're now being
  required to bring forth a witness, even if we don't put on a
  case in chief to bring some one forward.
      I didn't pick up on anything here that would
  indicate there's a focusing of what they might be obligated to
  testify about on a limited day when I got to bring somebody
  forward to say you got to deal with 70 pages of a technical
  report and be ready to testify on all of it.
      And like I say, did I miss anything?  Is there a
  winnowing of issues here to be presented?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: I mean, we haven't,
  and I think it's -- I think experts need to be prepared to
  testify on and defend their reports.  If they've come up with
  conclusions and they've relied upon scientific data, they need
  to be go ahead and be prepared to defend those opinions and
  show or testify as to why that data supports those
  conclusions.
      I don't know that there's really a feasible way
  of narrowing the focus at this point in time.
      I'm certainly open to suggestions and those are
  things that we can address.  And certainly, you know, in -- as
  we prepare for the following day, at the conclusion of the day
  that it's going to be perhaps there's an area that we can try
  to focus on more.  Unfortunately, I don't know if there's a

Min-U-Script® Capitol Reporters
775-882-5322

(19) Pages 73 - 76

SE ROA 538
JA_000269



State of Nevada 
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources August 8, 2019

Page 77

  better way of doing that.
      Are there any other questions regarding the
  procedurals?  Mr. Felling?
      MR. FELLING: Rick Felling for NV Energy.  I just
  had a question about PowerPoint presentations or those giving
  direct testimony.
      If those are extracted right from their reports,
  are they -- are they required to be presented ahead of time?
  Or are they required to be in a separate exhibit?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: They would be in a
  separate Exhibit.  I think optimally they should be presented.
  I mean, otherwise, it would just be -- I mean, I think if
  it's -- if it's purely just a summarization of the -- of the
  expert report in taking data or analyses or hydrographs or
  other types of, you know, analysis out of those reports, it's
  demonstrative, and so I don't know that it has to be submitted
  ahead of time, but certainly would -- but if it's available,
  that's always appreciated.
      Yes, Mr. Fahmy?
      MR. FAHMY: Peter Fahmy for National Park
  Service.  With regards to the case-in-chief or the direct,
  that can be in a narrative form?  Is that presentable?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Yes.
      MR. FAHMY: Very good.
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      MR. TAGGART: One other question is, can we use
  our time that you give us as we want?  Can we make an opening?

  Can we make a closing if there's time available?  I would
  assume we can do that.
      And the other question is whether you'll
  entertain any type of written closings or written proposed
  orders?  Maybe we can decide that during the course of the
  hearing, but have you put any thought into that?
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: I think people are
  free to go ahead and use their time as they see fit.  I'm
  not -- I don't know that we're necessarily going to
  micromanage how individuals want to go ahead and put forth
  their particular positions with respect to these order, the
  Order 1303 viewpoint, you know, what we solicited for the
  purposes of this hearing.
      Again, I think we've tried to be fairly pointed
  in how we want, you know, what we intend this hearing to
  accomplish and what we're trying to derive out of the purpose
  of this hearing.
      I mean, so to that extent, we're not going to
  micromanage how people use their time so long as just
  recognizing if time is spent on something, it's an exchange
  for other stuff that the State Engineer needs to take into
  consideration.
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      With regards to proposed orders and those
  different types of things, that's probably something that we
  can address during the course of the hearing.
      At this point in time, we haven't -- we haven't
  decided to accept and take or to solicit proposed orders, but
  that's something that we can certainly continue to consider.
      And with regards to having a period of time,
  we've been contemplating and talking about whether or not
  they'll be a period of time for individuals, you know, for --
  we'll probably have a window of time for additional public
  comment to be submitted in written format for the hearing, but
  we're to the going to take new evidence and arguments
  following the conclusion of the hearing.
      MR. ROBISON: We just want to cross-examine the
  person who gives the opening.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: If they're identified
  as a witness.
      MR. TAGGART: That's not part of the rules.
      HEARING OFFICER FAIRBANK: Are there any other --

  any other questions or issues today?  And anybody on the
  phone, are there any other questions?  All right.
      Well, I thank everybody for their time and we
  appreciate it and we'll get that scheduling order out.  And if
  we don't see everyone on the 20th -- or the 19th, excuse me,
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  if we don't see you all on the 19th, we'll see you all on the
  23rd.
      Thank you.
      (Proceedings concluded at 10:53 a.m.)
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IN THE OFFICE OF THE STATE ENGINEER 

OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

1169 
ORDER 

HOLDING IN ABEYANCE CARBONATE-ROCK AQUIFER SYSTEM GROUNDWATER 
APPLICATIONS PENDING OR TO BE FILED IN COYOTE SPRINGS V ALLEY (BASIN 210), 
BLACK MOUNTAINS AREA (BASIN 215), GARNET VALLEY (BASIN 216), HIDDEN 
VALLEY (BASIN 217), MUDDY RIVER SPRINGS aka UPPER MOAPA VALLEY (BASIN 
219), LOWER MOAPA VALLEY (BASIN 220), AND FOR FURTHER STUDY OF THE 
APPROPRIATION OF WATER FROM THE CARBONATE-ROCK AQUIFER SYSTEM, 
LINCOLN AND CLARK COUNTIES, NEVADA. 

WHEREAS, the Nevada State Engineer is designated by the Nevada Legislature to perform 

the duties related to the management of the water resources belonging to the people of the State of 

Nevada. l 

WHEREAS, the State Engineer is empowered to make such reasonable rules and 

regulations as may be necessary for the proper and orderly execution of the powers conferred by 
2 law. 

WHEREAS, the State Engineer is empowered to conduct such studies as are necessary3 

WHEREAS, a large portion of the State of Nevada consisting of approximately 50,000 

square miles of sparsely populated land is underlain by significant carbonate-rock sequences" 

WHEREAS, the carbonate-rock sequences contain groundwater aquifers, which are 

believed to contain significant, but undetermined, quantities of ground water. 

WHEREAS, many persons or entities have filed water right applications requesting 

permission to appropriate substantial quantities of underground water from the carbonate-rock 

aquifer system. 

WHEREAS, in 1984, the Water Resources Division of the United States Department of 

Interior, Geological Survey proposed a 10-year investigation of the entire Carbonate Terrane, which 

includes the carbonate-rock aquifers of the areas referenced above. This study was proposed 

because the water resources of the Carbonate Terrane were not well defined, the hydrology and 
5 geology of the area are complex, and data was sparse. 

1 See, Nevada Revised Statutes chapters 532, 533, 534, 535 and 536. 

2 NRS § 532.120. 

3 NRS § 532.165(1), 533.368 and 533.370(2). 

4 Michael D. Dettinger, Distribution of Carbonate-Rock Aq)lifers in Southern Nevada and the 
potential for tbeir Development, Summary of Findings, 1985-1988 Summary Report No. I, United 
States Geological Survey, Department of Interior and Desert Research Institute, University of 
Nevada System, p. 3, 1989. See also, Memorandum dated August 3, 1984, from Terry Katzer, 
Nevada Office Chief, Water Resources Division, United States Department of Interior Geologic 
Survey, Carson City, Nevada, to Members of the Carbonate Terrane Study, Attachment p. 8, which 
indicates that the area underlain by significant carbonate-rock sequences in Nevada is over 40,000 
square miles of sparsely populated land, and includes 106 hydrographic areas and basins. 

5 Memorandum dated August 3,1984, from Terry Katzer, Nevada Office Chief, Water Resources 
Division, United States Department of Interior Geologic Survey, Carson City, Nevada, to 
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WHEREAS, it has been known since 1984 that to arrive at some reasonable understanding 

of the carbonate-rock aquifer system, substantial amounts of money would be required to develop 

the science, a significant period of study would be required, and that "unless this understanding is 

reached, the development of carbonate water is risky and the resultant effects may be disastrous for 

the developers and current users. ,,6 

WHEREAS, the United States Geological Survey has indicated that given the multiple 

possible avenues of hydrologic connection between the various aquifers and flow systems, and the 

uncertainties of recharge and discharge mechanisms and processes, an investigation of the 

hydrology ofthe carbonate-rock aquifer system in Nevada is undoubtedly a difficult undertaking. 

WHEREAS, an investigation of the carbonate-rock aquifer system is additionally 

complicated by factors including:7 

- basic hydrologic data such as groundwater levels in the basin-fill aquifers and the 

carbonate-rock aquifers, and reliable flow measurements for important springs and major 

streams are scarce or infrequently obtained in much of the area; 

- secondary hydrologic and other data, such as hydraulic parameters, geophysical and 

geochemical, are lacking in many areas; 

- the geometry, properties, and boundaries of the carbonate-rock and basin-fill reservoirs are 

generally unknown, .. and definition of these properties can be expensive and difficult; 

- climatic conditions today are inadequately defined (particularly at higher altitudes) and 

conditions during the development of the flow paths within the deep-rock aquifers and flow 

paths within the carbonate-rock aquifer are even more uncertain; 

- uncertainties and inaccuracies exist in current methods of estimating precipitation; 

- uncertainties and inaccuracies exist in current methods of estimating groundwater inflow 

and recharge; 

- uncertainties and inaccuracies exist in current methods of estimating groundwater outflow 

and evaporative discharge; 

- only a small number of wells tap the deep carbonate-rock aquifer system; 

- because there has been no significant historical pumping of ground water from the 

carbonate-rock aquifer system, groundwater models can only be used as a limited predictive 

tool for estimating the principle location and magnitude of the impacts of pumping ground 

water from the system; 

- limited stresses on the water resources of the area under current development conditions 

allow hydrologists information only on the narrow band of system responses to natural 

conditions; and 

- the relationship between geothermal systems and the deep carbonate-rock aquifers and 

groundwater flow systems is not well understood. 

WHEREAS, in 1985, the Nevada Legislature authorized a program for the study and 

testing of the carbonate-rock aquifer system of eastern and southern Nevada. The program was a 

cooperative effort between the State of Nevada and the Federal Government. The overall plan for 

the program was to study the carbonate-rock aquifers of southern, east-central, and northeastern 

Nevada as separate phases of work, with a summary of findings to be prepared at the end of each 

Members of the Carbonate Terrane Study. 

6 Ihirl. 

7 !d., Attachment p. 7. 
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phase. A report, Distrihution of Carbonate-Rock Aquifers in Southern Nevada and the potential for 

their Deyelopment Summary of Findings, 1985-1988,8 summarized the findings of the first phase 

of the study, which assessed the resources of the carbonate-rock aquifers of southern Nevada. The 

summary brought together results from more than 20 technical reports produced during the study. 

The summary indicated that: 

The rocks that compose the carbonate-rock aquifers are layers of limestone 
and dolomite that were deposited hundreds of millions of years ago in much of the 
eastern Great Basin. Subsequently, the carbonate rocks were much deformed; as a 
result, they no longer exist as continuous layers beneath the region. Instead, they 
have been pulled apart to form a few large areas of thick and relatively continuous 
carbonate rocks. Separating these areas are noncarbonate rocks, within which are 
isolated mountain-sized blocks of carbonate rock. 

Beneath southern Nevada, the thick carbonate-rock layers are continuous 
enough to transmit ground water at regional scales only beneath a north-south 
"corridor" 60-90 miles wide that extends southward from east-central Nevada to and 
beyond the Spring Mountains area west of Las Vegas. Within this corridor are the 
two major regional flow systems of southern Nevada: the Ash Meadows-Death 
Valley system and the White River-Muddy River Springs system. These flow 
systems link the ground water beneath dozens of valleys and over distances 
exceeding 200 miles. Flow in these systems probably is concentrated along highly 
transmissive zones associated with (1) recently active faults and (2) confluences of 
flow near major warm-water springs. Outside of the corridor, the carbonate rocks 
are present primarily as isolated blocks that form aquifers of limited extent, 
recharged mostly by local precipitation. 

* * * 

Large-scale development (sustained withdrawals) of water from the 
carbonate-rock aquifers would result in water-level declines and cause the depletion 
of large quantities of stored water. Ultimately, these declines would cause 
reductions in the flow of warm-water springs that discharge from the regional 
aquifers. Storage in other nearby aquifers also might be depleted, and water levels 
in those other aquifers could decline. In contrast, isolated smaller ground-water 
developments, or developments that withdraw ground water for only a short time, 
may result in water-level declines and springflow reductions of manageable or 
acceptable magnitude. 

Confidence in predictions of the effects of development, however, is low; 
and it will remain low until observations of the initial hydrologic results of 
development are analyzed. A strategy of staging developments gradually and 
adequately monitoring the resulting hydrologic conditions would provide 
information that eventually could be used to improve confidence in the predictions

9 

WHEREAS, because assurances that the adverse effects of development will not 

overshadow the benefits cannot be made with a high degree of confidence, development of the 

carbonate-rock aquifer system must be undertaken in gradual stages together with adequate 

8 Michael D. Dettinger, Distrihution of Carbonate-Rock Aq)ljfers jn Soutbern Neyada and the 
Potential for their Development, Summary of Findings, 1985-1988, Summary Report No. I, United 
States Geological Survey, Department of Interior and Desert Research Institute, University of 
Nevada System, Forward, 1989. 

9 J.d, pp. 1-2. 
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monitoring in order to predict, through the use of a calibrated model, the effects of continued or 

increased development with a higher degree of confidence. 

WHEREAS, staging development gradually means not developing the resources in one 

large step, but rather starting with small projects that are possibly augmented gradually if conditions 

and confidence warrant. This approach allows the effects of development to be observed and 

analyzed continually, so that the benefits and adverse effects of development can be judged and the 

effects reversed or mitigated if they prove to be detrimental to existing rights and the environment. 

This approach would hopefully avoid the havoc that could be created by the curtailment of water 

use by those who have come to rely on it if impacts occur requiring curtailment of the water use. 

WHEREAS, the 1995 Water-Resources Investigations Report 91_4146 10 estimates the total 

water budget of all southern Nevada aquifers from the natural recharge to the mountains and 

subsurface inflow to the study areal I to be about 160,000 acre-feet annually, and discharges from 

major discharge areas to be about 77,000 acre-feet annually.12 

WHEREAS, it is believed that all of the recharge and subsurface inflow cannot be captured 

for use. 

WHEREAS, in July and August of 2001 nearly four weeks of public administrative 

hearings were conducted on applications filed by the Las Vegas Valley Water District (Applications 

54055 - 54059, inclusive) and Coyote Springs Investment, LLC (Applications 63272 - 63276, 

inclusive, and 63867 -63876, inclusive), which together request to appropriate approximately 

135,000 acre-feet of water annually from the carbonate-rock aquifer system within the Coyote 

Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin. J3 

WHEREAS, testimony and evidence from the administrative hearing on the Las Vegas 

Valley Water District's applications indicates that using the standard Maxey-Eakin technique for 

estimation of groundwater recharge from precipitation, the recharge for the Coyote Springs Valley, 

Muddy River Springs, Hidden Valley, Gamet Valley, Black Mountains and Lower Moapa Valley 

10 Michael D. Dettinger, et aI., Distrihution of Carbonate-Rock Aquifers and the potential for 
Their Deyelopment Southern Neyada and Adjacent Parts of California, Arizona and IItah, U.S. 
Geological Survey, Water-Resources Investigations Report 91-4146, p. 50, 1995. 

II The study area is defmed on p. 5 of Water-Resources Investigations Report 91-4146 to be most 
of southern Nevada south of Tonopah and Pioche. 

12 Discharge areas are identified as Muddy River Springs 36,000 acre-feet annually (afa) of 
spring flow, Blue Point Spring 240 afa of spring flow, Rogers Spring 920 afa of spring flow, 
Frenchman Mountain 2,100 afa of underflow toward Colorado River, Pahrump Valley 18,000 afa 
of underflow to California, Ash Meadows 17,000 afa of spring flow and evapotranspiration, 
Amargosa Desert 3,000 afa.of underflow to Death Valley, and Grapevine Canyon 400 afa of 
underflow to Death Valley. Water-Resources Investigations Report 91-4146 at 53. 

13 It is noted that at the administrative hearing on Coyote Springs Investment, LLC Applications 
63272 - 63276, inclusive, and 63867 -63876, inclusive, the applicant indicated they are requesting 
the State Engineer "to issue the permits as requested but limit their full use until the monitoring and 
mitigation program is in effect." Transcript, public administrative hearing before the State 
Engineer, August 20, 2001, p. 58. However, the applicant further indicated that it requested that a 
minimum of four permits be issued, two in each county, with the second permit in each county to 
be used to stress the aquifer. Two permits for a total amount of 14,478 afa would be for 
development, two permits for a total amount of 14,478 afa would be to stress the aquifer under 
some temporary development. Transcript, public administrative hearing before the State Engineer, 
August 20,2001, pp. 91-96. This is after the 27,504 afa requested by the Las Vegas Valley Water 
District. 
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areas combined is approximately 3,550 acre-feet annually. Using the modified Maxey-Eakin 

technique introduced at the administrative hearing (known as the Donovan-Katzer 2000 technique), 

the recharge is estimated at approximately 6,761 acre-feet annually for the combined areas. 14 

WHEREAS, testimony and evidence from the administrative hearing on the Las Vegas 

Valley Water District's applications indicates that approximately 50,000 acre-feet of groundwater 

inflow comes into the Coyote Springs Valley from northern groundwater basins and approximately 

53,000 acre-feet annually outflowsl5 from Coyote Springs Valley of which a portion may be 

available for capture from that groundwater underflow. While testimony presented indicated a 

belief that significant quantities of water may be available for capture from storage, it is unknown 

what quantity that would be and if any underground water could be appropriated without 

unreasonable and irreversible impacts. 16 

WHEREAS, testimony and evidence from the administrative hearing on the Las Vegas 

Valley Water District's applications indicates that a portion of the ground water outflow from 

Coyote Springs Valley is believed to discharge at a rate of approximately 37,000 acre-feet annually 

at the Muddy River Springs area and approximately 16,000 to 17,000 acre-feet annually flows to 

groundwater basins further south. I 7 This 37,000 acre-feet is counted as part of the 53,000 acre-feet 

outflow from Coyote Springs Valley resulting in 16,000-17,000 acre-feet annual flow that by­

passes the Muddy River Springs area. 

WHEREAS, these referenced large springs located near the central part of the Upper 

Moapa Valley, which that collectively discharge approximately 37,000 acre-feet annually of 

underground water, are fully appropriated pursuant to the Muddy River Decree. ls It is believed that 

the source of water discharged originates mainly from the carbonate-rock aquifer system, but it is 

unknown if the discharge originates solely from the White River Flow System or is also influenced 

by discharge from the Meadow Valley Flow System or if there is influence from the alluvial 

aquifer. 

WHEREAS, listed endangered and/or potential threatened species exist in the Muddy 

SpringslMuddy River area. 

WHEREAS, testimony and evidence from the administrative hearing on the Las Vegas 

Valley Water District's applications indicates that their own expert witnesses are unable to make a 

suggestion to the State Engineer as to what part of the water budget could be captured without a 

great deal of uncertainty, and that the question cannot be resolved without stressing the system.
19 

14 See, testimony of Terry Katzer and David Donavan; Exhibit 54, p. 4-25, public administrative 
hearing before the State Engineer, July 16-24, 2001. 

15 Taking into account for 4,000 afa of in-basin recharge and 1,000 afa of evapotranspiration. 

16 See, testimony of Terry Katzer and David Donavan, public administrative hearing before the 
State Engineer, July 16-24, 2001. 

17 See, testimony of Terry Katzer and David Donavan, public administrative hearing before the 
State Engineer, July 16-24, 2001. 

18 Judgment and Decree, Tn the Matter of the Determination ofllie Relatiye Rigbts In and To tbe 
Waters oftbe Muddy Riyer and Its Tributaries in Clark County, State of Neyada, March 12,1920, 
Tenth Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, In and For the County of Clark. 

19 See, testimony of Terry Katzer and David Donavan, public administrative hearing before the 
State Engineer, June 16-24,2001. 
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WHEREAS, testimony and evidence from the administrative hearing on the Las Vegas 

Valley Water District's applications indicates that the State Engineer's ability to determine if 

development of the carbonate-rock aquifer system will impact existing rights is dependent on how 

the water rights are brought "on-line" and monitored20 

WHEREAS, testimony and evidence from the administrative hearing on the Las Vegas 

Valley Water District's applications indicates that little is known about the hydrologic connectivity 

between the groundwater basins, that virtually nothing is known about the mountain blocks, 

estimates of recharge to the area can vary by a factor of two, there is probably some connectivity 

between the water in the carbonate-rock aquifers and the alluvial groundwater basins,21 there is still 

little data available and not much has changed from the information known in 1984. 

WHEREAS, the State Engineer has been provided several different models, which though 

based on little pumping data, all provide the State Engineer with different analyses, and which all 

indicate that the pumping of substantial amounts of carbonate-rock aquifer water will likely impact 

the sources ofthe Muddy River. 

WHEREAS, the State Engineer has previously granted groundwater permits, which 

authorize use of underground water in the area underlain by the carbonate-rock aquifer system or 

directly from the carbonate-rock aquifer system in the following quantities: 

Coyote Springs Valley (Basin 210) 16,300 acre-feet 

Black Mountain (Basin 215) 10,216 acre-feet 

Gamet Valley (Basin 216) 3,380 acre-feet 

Hidden Valley (Basin 217) 2,200 acre-feee2 

Muddy River Springs 14,756 acre-feet 
aka Upper Moapa Valley (Basin 219) 

Lower Moapa Valley (Basin 220) ...5$l3 acre-feet 

50,465 acre-feet 

WHEREAS, of all the water rights issued from the carbonate-rock aquifer system, to date 

very few have actually been pumped. 

WHEREAS, if 16,000 to 17,000 acre-feet is believed to by-pass the Muddy River Springs 

area, the water right permits already issued in Coyote Springs Valley alone equal the estimate of the 

amount of carbonate flow that by-passes the region and is not part of the flow discharged from the 

Muddy River Springs area. 

WHEREAS, Nevada Revised Statute § 533.370(2)(b) provides that the State Engineer may 

postpone action on an application in areas where studies of water supplies are necessary. 

WHEREAS, Nevada Revised Statute § 533.368 provides that if the State Engineer 

determines that a hydrological study, an environmental study or any other study is necessary before 

he makes a final determination on an application, and the applicant, a governmental agency or other 

person has not conducted such a study or the required study is not available, the State Engineer 

shall advise the applicant ofthe need for the study and the type of study required. 

20 Ibid. 

21 Ibid. 

22 This 2,200 acre-feet is combined with 2,200 acre-feet issued in Gamet Valley for a total of 
2,200 afa between the two basins· 
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WHEREAS, Nevada Revised Statute § 533.368(4) provides that the State Engineer shall 

consult with the applicant and the governing body of the county or counties in which the point of 

diversion and place of use are located concerning the scope and progress ofthe study. 

WHEREAS, the State Engineer believes it is prudent to work with a model, and the 

appropriate model will be determined in conjunction with the parties identified below who are 

responsible for participating in the study. 

WHEREAS, the State Engineer does not believe it is prudent to issue any additional water 

rights to be pumped from the identified portions of the carbonate-rock aquifer until a significant 

portion of the water rights which have already been issued are pumped for a substantial period of 

time in order to determine if the pumping of those water rights will have any detrimental impacts on 

existing water rights or the environment. 

NOW THEREFORE, the State Engineer orders: 

1. All applications pending and any new filings for the appropriation of water from the 

carbonate-rock aquifer system in Coyote Springs Valley (Basin 210), Black Mountains Area (Basin 

215), Gamet Valley (Basin 216), Hidden Valley (Basin 217), Muddy River Springs aka as Upper 

Moapa Valley (Basin 219), and Lower Moapa Valley (Basin 220) will be held in abeyance until 

further information is obtained by stressing the aquifer by those water right permits already issued 

to appropriate water from the carbonate-rock aquifer system. 

2. While the studies proposed in 1985 were a beginning, those studies indicated that large­

scale developments with sustained withdrawals of water from the carbonate-rock aquifers would 

result in water-level declines and depletion of stored water, but that isolated smaller groundwater 

developments or developments of limited duration may result in water-level declines and 

springflow reductions of manageable and acceptable magnitudes. However, very little additional 

information based on hard science has been produced since that time. Nevada Revised Statute § 

533.368 provides the State Engineer with the authority to withhold action on pending applications 

and to advise the applicant of the need for additional study. The State Engineer finds that further 

hydrological study is needed before a final determination can be made on carbonate-rock aquifer 

system water right applications in the referenced basins. 

3. The State Engineer, in conjunction with those identified below as applying for additional 

water rights and already having an interest in water rights permitted from the carbonate-rock aquifer 

system, or their successors in interest, will conduct a study to provide information on the effect of 

pumpage of those water rights which have already been issued from the carbonate-rock aquifer. 

The entities that shall participate in the study must at a minimum include: 

Las Vegas Valley Water District 

Southern Nevada Water Authority 

Coyote Springs Investment, LLC 

Nevada Power Company 

Moapa Valley Water District. 

The study must cover a 5-year minimum period during which at least 50% of the water 

rights currently permitted in the Coyote Springs Valley groundwater basin are pumped for at least 2 

consecutive years. 

4. These referenced applicants or permittees shall bear the cost of the study, and a cash deposit 

divided pro rata among them will be required as set forth in NRS § 533.368(3) after a determination 

of the estimate of cost to complete the study. 
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5. The State Engineer will arrange meetings between the State Engineer and the Las Vegas 

Valley Water District, Southern Nevada Water Authority, Coyote Springs mvestment, LLC, 

Nevada Power Company, and Moapa Valley Water District, or their successors, and the governing 

bodies of the counties in which there are proposed points of diversion and places of use under their 

pending applications concerning the scope ofthe study. 

6. The State Engineer orders the Las Vegas Valley Water District, Southern Nevada Water 

Authority, Coyote Springs mvestment, LLC, Nevada Power Company, Moapa VaHey Water 

District, Dry Lake Water Company, LLC, Republic Environmental Technologies, mc., Chemical 

Lime Co., Nevada Cogeneration Associates, or their successors, who presently hold water rights 

authorized for appropriation from the carbonate-rock aquifer, to provide the other parties to the 

study and the State Engineer with data on a quarterly basis as to the rate at which water was 

diverted under the specific water right permits issued, total acre-feet diverted per month, and 

monthly water level measurements 

7. After the study period, the Las Vegas Valley Water District; Southern Nevada Water 

Authority; Coyote Springs mvestment, LLC; Nevada Power Company; and Moapa Valley Water 

District are ordered to file with the State Engineer, within 180 days of the end of the fifth 

consecutive year, a report as to the information obtained and any impacts seen to the groundwater 

or surfacewater resources of the carbonate-rock aquifer or alluvial aquifer systems from the 

pumping of those rights presently permitted. 

8. At the end of the study period, the Las Vegas Valley Water District/Southern Nevada Water 

Authority will update Exhibit 54 from the July 2001 hearings in order to show the State Engineer 

the effects, if any, of the water it requested for appropriation under Applications 54055 - 54059, 

inclusive, as they are filed. The State Engineer will then make a determination if he has sufficient 

information to proceed with ruling on those applications for which hearings have already been 

conducted, i.e., Las Vegas Valley Water District (Applications 54055 - 54059, inclusive) and 

Coyote Springs mvestment, LLC (Applications 63272 - 63276, inclusive, and 63867 -63876, 

inclusive), and other applications pending for the appropriation of water from the carbonate-rock 

aquifer system. 

Dated at Carson City, Nevada, 

this ~ day of March, 2002 
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CERTlFICATE OF SERVICE 

I, the undersigned, declare under penalty of perjury, that I am an employee ofthe Nevada 

Division of Water Resources, that I am over the age of eighteen (18) years, and that I am not a 

party to, nor interested in, this action. On this date, I mailed a true and correct copy of Nevada 

Division of Water Resources' Order No. 1169, addressed to the following: 

Las Vegas Valley Water District 
Attn: Kay Brothers 
1001 S. Valley View 
Las Vegas, NY 89153 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8555 9034 

Coyote Springs Investment, L.L.c. 
7755 Spanish Springs Road 
Sparks, NY 89436 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8555 9041 

C.S. Inc. 
Judy Kuban 
1625 Wendy Way 
Reno, NY 89509 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8555 9058 

Dry Lake Water, LLC 
2701 North Tenaya Way, Suite 200 
Las Vegas, NY 89128 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8555 9065 

Bonneville Nevada Corp. 
257 East 200 South, Suite 800 
Salt Lake City, UT 84111 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8555 9072 

C.O. Myers, Exec. Dir. 
Nevada Cogeneration Ass. 
P.O. Box 81378 
Bakersfield, CA 93380 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8555 9089 

Nevada Power Co. 
Attn: Craig York 
P.O. Box 230 
Las Vegas, NY 89151-0001 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8555 9096 

Oxford Energy of Nevada, Inc. 
3510 Unocal Place 
Santa Rosa, CA 95403 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8555 9102 

James W. Adams 
7439 La Palma Ave., Suite 234 
Buena Park, CA 90620 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8555 9119 

Stallion Sand & Gravel, LLC 
624 Casa del Norte 
North Las Vegas, NY 89031 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8555 9126 

Moapa Band of Paiute Indians 
P.O. Box 340 
Moapa, NY 89025 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4562 

Moapa Valley Water District 
P.O. Box 257 
Logandale, NY 89021 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4579 

Three Kids Enterprises 
4055 S. Spencer St., Suite 106 
Las Vegas, NY 89119 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4586 

Sandia Construction Inc. 
c/o Cameron Adams 
Box 1297 
Susanville, CA 96103 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4593 

Nevada Cogneration Associates 
420 N. Nellis Blvd., #A3-148 
Las Vegas, NY 89110 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4609 

N. Burgess 
420 N. Nellis Blvd., #A3-117 
Las Vegas, NY 89110 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4616 

North Valley Holdings 
500 Damonte Ranch Parkway, Suite 1056 
Reno, NY 89511 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4623 

Michael Buschelman 
P.O. Box 51371 
Sparks, NY 89435 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4630 

William Penn 
CMS Generation Co. 
330 Town Center Drive, Ste. 1100 
Dearborn, MI 48126 
Cert. Mail #700005200023 85584647 
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Thomas Shelton 
CMS Generation Co. 
2154 Hastings Ct. 
Santa Rosa, CA 95495-8577 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4654 

Wyman Engineering Consultants 
P.O. Box 60473 
Boulder City, NY 89006-0473 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4661 

John E. Hiatt 
8180 Placid St. 
Las Vegas, NY 89123 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4678 

City of Caliente 
Attn: George T. Rowe, Mayor 
P.O. Box 158 
Caliente, NY 89008 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4685 

County ofNye 
P.O. Box 1767 
Tonopah, NY 89049 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4692 

Ely Shoshone Tribe 
16 Shoshone Circle 
Ely, NY 89301 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 85584708 

Lincoln County, Board of Commissioners 
P.O. Box 90 
Pioche, NY 89043 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 002385584715 

Clark County Commissioners 
500 S. Grand Central Parkway 
Las Vegas, NY 89106-4506 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4807 

Muddy Valley Irrigation District 
P.O. Box 160 
Logandale, NY 89021 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4722 

U.S. Bureau of Indian Affairs 
Attn: Barry Welch 
P.O. Box 10 
Phoenix, Az. 85001 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 85584739 

U.S.D.I., B.L.M. 
Attn: Ben F. Collins, District Manager 
P.O. Box 26569 
Las Vegas, NY 89126 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4746 

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service 
911 NE 11th Ave. 
Portland, OR 97232-4184 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 85584753 

U.S. National Park Service 
Dan McGlothlin 
1201 Oak Ridge Drive, Suite 250 
Fort Collins, CO 80525 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 85584760 

Republic Environmental Technologies, Inc. 
770 E. Sahara Ave. 
Las Vegas, NY 89104 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 85584777 

Chemical Lime Co. 
P.O. Box 3609 
North Las Vegas, NY 89036 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 8558 4784 

Nevada Cogeneration Associates 
420 N. Nellis Blvd., A3-148 and 117 
Las Vegas, NY 89110 
Cert. Mail #7000 0520 0023 85584791 

Richard BerleylMark Slonim 
Ziontz, Chestnut, Vamell, Berley and Slonim 
2101 4th Ave., Suite 1230 
Seattle, W A 98121 

Robert Johnston 
Kilpatrick, Johnston & Adler 
412 North Division St. 
Carson City, NY 89703 

Ross de Lipkau 
Marshall Hill Cassas & de Lipkau 
P.O. Box 2790 
Reno, NY 89505 

PeterFahmy 
U.S. Dept. of Interior 
755 Parfet St., Suite 151 
Lakewood, CO 80215 

Robert Marshall 
Marshall Hill Cassas & deLipkau 
P.O. Box 2790 
Reno, NY 89505 

Byron Mills 
732 S. 6th St. 
Las Vegas, NY 89101 

Steve Palmer 
Office of the Regional Solicitor 
U.S. Dept. of Interior 
2800 Cottage Way, Room E-2753 
Sacramento, CA 95825-1890 
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Karen Peterson 
Allison, MacKenzie, Hartman, et. al. 
P.O. Box 646 
Carson City, NV 89702 

Peggy Twedt 
Frank Flaherty 
Dyer, Lawrence, Cooney & Penrose 
2805 N. Mountain St. 
Carson City, NV 89703 

Harvey Whittemore 
Carl Savely 
Lionel, Sawyer & Collins 
50 West Liberty St. Suite 1100 
Reno, NV 89501 

Don Winter 
Agent C.8. Inc. 
P.O. Box 35136 
Las Vegas, NV 89133 

Charles Cave 
2325 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 

Dale Ferguson 
Woodburn & Wedge 
6100 Neil Road, Ste. 500 
Reno, NV 89511 

Mark Stock 
Global Hydrologic Services, Inc. 
561 Keystone Ave. #200 
Reno, NV 89503 

Linda Bowman 
540 Hammil Lane 
Reno,NV 89511 

George Benesch 
P.O. Box 3498 
Reno,NV 89505 

Dated this 9 day of March, 2002. 
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IN THE OFFICE OF THE STATE ENGINEER 
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN THE MATTER OF APPLICATIONS) 
72218,72219,72220 AND 72221 FILED TO ) 
APPROPRIATE THE UNDERGROUND ) 
WATERS OF THE KANE SPRINGS ) 
VALLEY HYDROGRAPHIC BASIN (206) ) 
LINCOLN COUNTY, NEVADA. ) 

GENERAl, 

I. 

RIJI.lNG 

15712 

Application 72218 was filed on February 14, 200S, by Lincoln County Water District and 

Vidler Water Company, Inc., to appropriate 6.0 cubic feet per second (cfs) of the underground 

water of the Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin for municipal purposes within Coyote Spring 

Valley Hydrographic Basin more specifically described as portions ofT.8S., R.62E., T.8S., R.63E., 

T.8S., R.64E., T.9S., R.61E., T.9S., R.62E., T.9S., R.63E., T.9S., R.64E., T.lOS., R.6IE., all of 

T.lOS., R.62E., portions ofT.lOS., R.63E., T.lOS., R.64E., T.llS., R.61E., all ofT.lIS., R.62E., 

portions of T.11S., R.63E., T.llS., R.64E., T.12S., R.6IE., all of T.12S., R.62E., all of T.12S., 

R.63E., portions of T.l2S., R.64E., T.12.5S., R.6IE., T.12.SS., R.62E., T.13S., R.6IE., all of 

T.13S., R.62E., portions ofT.l3S., R.63E., T.13S., R.64E., T.13.5S., R.63E., T.14S., R.61E., all of 

T.14S., R.62E., portions ofT.14S., R.63E., T.lSS., R.61E., T.1SS., R.62E., T.1SS., R.63E., T.16S., 

R.62E., M.D.B.& M. The proposed point of diversion is described as being located within the 

SWV.. SEv.. of Section 2S, T.8S., R.6SE., M.D.B.&M.! 

II. 

Application 72219 was filed on February 14, 200S, by Lincoln County Water District and 

Vidler Water Company, Inc., to appropriate 6.0 cfs of the underground water of the Kane Springs 

Valley Hydrographic Basin for municipal purposes within Coyote Spring Valley Hydrographic 

Basin more specifically as described above. The proposed point of diversion is described as being 

located within the SEY.. SWY.. of Section 31, T.9S., R.6SE., M.D.B.&M.2 

I File No. 72218, official records of the Office of the State Engineer. Exhibit No.2, public administrative hearing 
before the State Engineer, April 4-6, 2006. Hereinafter the exhibits and transcript will be referred to solely by 
exhibit number or transcript page. 
2 Exhibit NO.3. 
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III. 

Application 72220 was filed on February 14,2005, by Lincoln County Water District and 

Vidler Water Company, Inc., to appropriate 6.0 cfs of the underground water of the Kane Springs 

Valley Hydrographic Basin for municipal purposes within Coyote Spring Valley Hydrographic 

Basin more specifically as described above. The proposed point of diversion is described as being 

located within the SEY4 SWY4 of Section 6, T.llS., R.64E., M.D.B.&M.3 

IV. 

Application 72221 was filed on February 14,2005, by Lincoln County Water District and 

Vidler Water Company, Inc., to appropriate 6.0 cfs of the underground water of the Kane Springs 

Valley Hydrographic Basin for municipal purposes within Coyote Spring Valley Hydrographic 

Basin more specifically as described above. The proposed point of diversion is described as being 

located in the SEY4 SWY4 of Section 11, T.9S., R.65E., M.D.B.&M.4 

V. 

Applications 72218 and 72219 were timely protested by White Pine County; however, said 

protests were withdrawn prior to the administrative hearing. 5 

VI. 

Applications 72218 and 72219 were timely protested by Wayne Lister, Ruby Lister and 

Bevan Lister on the grounds that: 

1. Lincoln County Water District has no written adopted plan for the use of the 
water applied for under this pennit. There is no city or town within the area of this 
pennit. 
2. We have long argued that moving water from one basin to another is 
detrimental to the originating basin. 
3. Lincoln County Water District is supposed to be a local government entity 
protecting and planning for the benefit of the citizens of Lincoln County but in 
teaming up with Vidler they become merely speculative with the sole objective to 
make a profit.6 

VII. 

Applications 72218, 72219, 72220 and 72221 were timely protested by the United States 

Department ofInterior, National Park Service ("NPS") on the grounds that: 

) Exhibit No.4. 
4 Exhibit No.5. 
5 Exhibit No.6. 
6 Exhibit No.7. 
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I. There is no water available for appropriation because committed water 
resources exceed ground-water recharge. 
2. The approval and development of the appropriation proposed by this 
application will impair the water rights ofthe United States, because: 

A. The appropriation, in combination with other appropriations and 
withdrawals in Coyote Spring Valley will further reduce the discharge of the 
Muddy River. The United States' senior water right and other existing 
rights to the Muddy River would be impaired, if the appropriation is 
approved and developed. 
B. The proposed appropriation, in combination with existing 
appropriations and pending applications in the White River ground-water 
flow system, if approved and developed, would reduce the discharge of Lake 
Mead NRA [National Recreation Area] springs, because of the large 
potential withdrawal rate. The drawdown caused by such large withdrawals 
would extend to capture ground water that naturally discharges through the 
spnngs. 
C. The effects of the appropriation proposed by this application, when 
combined with other existing and proposed appropriations, could impair the 
senior water rights of the Lake Mead NRA more quickly and/or to a degree 
greater than the withdrawal proposed under this application alone. 

3. The public interest would not be served, by granting a permit to this 
application, because: 

A. The public interest would not be served by granting this application, 
because the water and water-related resources in the nationally important 
Lake Mead NRA would be diminished or impaired, as a result of the 
appropriation proposed by this application. 
B. The land which the applicant proposes to withdraw the water is not 

owned by the applicant. [This protest claim only goes to Applications 

72218 and 72219,f 

VIII. 

Applications 72220 and 72221 were protested by the United States Department of Interior, 

Fish and Wildlife Service ("FWS") on the grounds that: 

The proposed groundwater development threatens the biological and water 
resources under the jurisdiction of the US Fish and Wildlife Service in the White 
River Groundwater Flow System. Kane Springs Valley is located upgradient of 
Coyote Spring Valley and the Muddy River Area. Pumping of groundwater from 
the basin could reduce the groundwater influx to springs at Moapa Valley National 
Wildlife Refuge in the Muddy River Area. The combined perennial yield for 
Coyote Spring valley [sic] and Kane Springs Valley may be on the order of 2,600 
acre-feetlyr as estimated in ground-water Resources Reconnaissance Series Report 
25. Although there are no permits in Kane Springs Valley, there are at least 200,000 

7 Exhibit No.8. 
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acre-feetlyr of permitted and pending applications in Coyote Spring Valley, directly 
downgradient. An additional withdrawal would only add to the current exceedance 
of the perennial yield for the combined basins. Such a withdrawal of groundwater 
in excess of the perennial yield could result in reduced groundwater flow from 
Coyote Spring Valley to the Muddy River Area, or result in a reversed gradient 
causing groundwater outflow from Coyote Spring Valley to Kane Springs Valley. 
Senior water rights held by the Fish and Wildlife Service in the Moapa Valley 
National Wildlife refuge [sic] could be adversely impacted. Such an impact to the 
water rights and resources of the Moapa Valley National Wildlife refuge [sic] and 
environs could adversely impact threatened and endangered species including 
Moapa dace and Southwestern Willow Flycatcher; which depend on these water 
resources for survival. Water-dependent resources in Lower Meadow Valley Wash 
may be threatened by the proposed development too. The combined volume from 
all of these pending applications and permitted water rights exceeds all current 
estimates of the available water for appropriation in the White River Groundwater 
Flow System. Lacking more information to demonstrate that water is available for 
appropriation without adversely impacting existing water rights and water-related 
resources, these applications should be denied. 8 

IX. 

By letter dated February 6, 2006, the NPS and FWS requested the State Engineer amend 

State Engineer's Order No. 1169 to include the Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin within the 

provisions of the Order and included a request to hold these applications in abeyance until the 

pumping ordered in Coyote Spring Valley was completed and ana1yzed.9 The reasoning behind the 

request is that these agencies believe Kane Springs Valley and Coyote Spring Valley, while 

administratively classified as separate hydrographic basins, are actually a single distinct hydrologic 

drainage basin and should be managed as such. At the public administrative hearing on these 

applications, the Applicant and Protestant FWS presented a stipulation to resolve the FWS's 

protests.1O The resolution was also in lieu of statements made on behalf ofthe FWS in the February 

6, 2006, letter that requested Kane Springs Valley be included in State Engineer's Order No. 

1169. II Pursuant to the Stipulation, the FWS withdrew its protests and the parties requested that 

Exhibit A to the Stipulation be included as part of the terms and conditions of any applications that 

are granted. However, the NPS's request to include Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin 

within the provisions of Order No. 1169 remains to be resolved. 

8 Exhibit No.9. 
9 Exhibit No.1 O. 
10 Exhibit No. 116. 
" Transcript, p. 12. 
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x. 
After all parties of interest were duly noticed by certified mail, an administrative hearing 

was held with regard to the protested applications on April 4-6, 2006, at Carson City, Nevada, 

before representatives of the Office of the State Engineer. 12 

FINDINGS OF FACT 

I. 

The Listers protested the applications on the grounds that Lincoln County Water District has 

no written plan for the use ofthe water applied for and there is no city or town within the area of the 

applications. The State Engineer fmds there is no requirement in Nevada water law for a written 

plan to be provided in furtherance of a water right application. The State Engineer finds water right 

applications are almost always filed for proposed projects that are planned, but not in existence, and 

the water cannot be used until the State Engineer grants a permit that authorizes the use of the 

water. As discussed in Section ill below, the Nevada Legislature has provided the Lincoln County 

Water District with the authority to serve water to all real property located within the boundaries of 

Lincoln County. Nevada water law requires that an applicant provide evidence of an actual 

beneficial use for the water applied for!3 and proof satisfactory to the State Engineer of his intention 

in good faith to construct any work necessary to apply the water to the intended beneficial use with 

reasonable diligence and his financial ability and reasonable expectation to actually construct the 

work and apply the water to the intended beneficial use with reasonable diligence.
14 

The State 

Engineer finds, as discussed below, that the Applicant provided substantial evidence of a project 

where the water applied for would be used and proof satisfactory of construction of the work to 

apply the water to the intended beneficial use with reasonable diligence and the financial ability and 

reasonable expectation to actually construct the work and apply the water to the intended beneficial 

use with reasonable diligence. 

II. 

The Listers' protests allege that they have long argued that moving water from one basin to 

another is detrimental to the originating basin. The State Engineer finds that Nevada water law 

specifically provides for the interbasin transfer of water provided the applicant meets all of the 

12 Exhibit No.1. 
13 NRS § 533.035. 
14 NRS § 533.3 70. 
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necessary criteria found in the Nevada Revised Statutes, induding but not limited to NRS §§ 

533.370(5) and (6). Nevada Revised Statute § 533.370(6)(c) and (d) require the State Engineer to 

take into consideration whether the proposed action is environmentally sound as it relates to the 

basin from which the water is exported and whether the proposed action is an appropriate long-term 

use which will not unduly limit the future growth and development in the basin from which the 

water is exported. The State Engineer finds Nevada water law requires the State Engineer to 

consider factors relevant to the originating basin, but specifically provides for the interbasin transfer 

of water. 

III. 

The Listers' protests allege that the Lincoln County Water District is supposed to be a local 

government entity protecting and planning for the benefit of the citizens of Lincoln County but, that 

in teaming up with Vidler Water Company, the Lincoln County Water District has become merely 

speculative with the sole objective to make a profit. In 2003, the Nevada Legislature enacted 

legislation that provided for the creation of the Lincoln County Water District.15 The special 

legislative act that created the Lincoln County Water District provided that its jurisdiction and 

service area are all the real property located within the boundaries of Lincoln County and 

authorized the Lincoln County Water District to sell water and water rights and to enter into 

agreements with a private entity or corporation for the transfer or delivery of any water right or 

water appropriated.16 

The State Engineer finds the Nevada Legislature gave the Lincoln County Water District its 

authority. The State Engineer finds the Lincoln County Water District like any other applicant has 

to demonstrate a beneficial use for the water applied for under these applications and has to satisfy 

the other statutory requirements. The State Engineer finds if the Protestant Listers have an issue 

with the operation of the Lincoln County Water District that is a matter outside of the State 

Engineer's jurisdiction. 

IV. 

Through testimony and evidence, the Applicants' expert witnesses presented their 

interpretation of the geology and hydrogeology of the Kane Springs Valley and vicinity. They 

conclude that the northern portion of the valley is underlain by a volcanic caldera complex and, 

15 Chapter 474, Statutes of Nevada 2003. 
16 1d. at Sections 11(7), 11(11), and 11(12). 
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therefore, has low potential for regional ground-water flow. However, they interpreted the evidence 

as indicating that the southwestern portion of the basin is underlain by a significant thickness of 

carbonate rockS.
17 

The Applicants conducted a pumping test at their well KPW -1 and, based on the 

results of the test and their interpretation of the geology, concluded that there is the potential for 

considerable ground-water movement through the Paleozoic carbonate rocks in Kane Springs 

Valley.18 The Kane Springs Wash fault zone is oriented in a northeasterly direction, and is thought 

to both channel ground-water flow along its length from northeast to southwest, and to act as a 

barrier to ground-water flow across it from north to south. The witnesses also presented testimony 

supporting ground-water inflow into the Kane Springs Valley from the north. 19 

The State Engineer finds that the Applicants' interpretation of ground-water movement in 

the Kane Springs Valley from northeast to southwest and into Coyote Spring Valley, preferentially 

along the Kane Springs Wash fault zone, is generally consistent with the available data. The State 

Engineer further finds that the Applicants' pumping test supports the conclusion that there is 

considerable potential for ground-water flow in the carbonate rocks in the vicinity of well KPW-l. 

The State Engineer also finds that there was not sufficient evidence presented to support a 

determination of the potential for ground-water inflow into the Kane Springs Valley. 

v. 
The Applicants presented evidence to quantifY subsurface inflow and outflow across the 

Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin boundaries. The Applicants propose that ground water 

enters Kane Springs Valley from northern Coyote Spring Valley, passing through its western tip, 

and exits southwesterly back into Coyote Spring Valley. Local recharge is thought to combine 

with the inflow and exit the basin to the southwest. Since the water table is relatively deep in 

Kane Springs Valley and ET of ground water is negligible, virtually all ground-water discharge 

from the basin must occur via subsurface outflow. 

Mr. Lewis applied Darcy's law to estimate the magnitude of the ground-water inflow into 

Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin via a three-mile corridor on the western edge of Kane 

Springs Valley.2o Darcy's law states the volume of flow is equal to aquifer transmissivity 

multiplied by aquifer width multiplied by the hydraulic gradient. He estimated transmissivity for 

17 Transcript, pp. 43-47, 57; Exhibit No. 15, pp. 13-14; Exhibit No. 20, pp. 3-4. 
" Transcript, pp. 58-59, 62-63. 
19 Exhibit No. 20, pp. 6-13. 
20 Exhibit No. 20, pp. 6- 13. 
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the "bulk aquifer" from the pumping test performed at the well identified as KPW -1. He then 

multiplied that value by three on the assumption that the aquifer is three times thicker than 

penetrated by the test well. For a value of hydraulic gradient, Mr. Lewis used water levels in 

wells CSVM-3 and CE-VF-2, which are located near the center of Coyote Spring Valley. 

The State Engineer finds the Applicants' inflow analysis is overly interpretive and 

without sufficient supporting evidence. Inflow into the basin is proposed to occur through a 

three-mile wide zone on the western basin boundary. Flow direction is assumed to be from the 

north to south even though there are no local hydraulic head data to support the hypothesis of 

hydraulic gradient or flow direction. The Applicants' witness used hydraulic data from the 

KPW -1 pumping test, which is located approximately six miles from the proposed inflow area. 

The hydraulic gradient is assumed to be equal to that between wells CSVM-3 and CE-VF-2 even 

though these wells are located six and 15 miles away, respectively, from the proposed inflow 

zone. Inflow through the three-mile wide corridor is proposed by the Applicants to be 13,000 

acre-feet per year. This amount is approximately one-third of the total amount of regional flow 

from Pahranagat and Delamar Valleys to Coyote Spring Valley of approximately 37,000 acre-feet 

per year.21 However, the proposed flow corridor into Kane Springs Valley is a relatively narrow 

zone at the comer of the basin. Geologic structures in the area of the proposed inflow corridor 

strike north northeasterly, and may have the effect of channeling flow along them parallel to the 

basin boundary, similar to the conceptual model of the Applicants along the Kane Spring and 

Willow Spring fault zones. Geologic cross-section B-B' shows a thrusted block of low­

permeability basement rocks that would act to block potential inflow.22 The State Engineer finds 

that sufficient data does not exist to substantiate or reliably estimate subsurface flows into the 

Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin and the Applicants' inflow estimates are hereby 

discounted and not accepted. 

The Applicants' outflow analysis utilized two estimates of transmissivity from the KPW-

1 pumping test. This analysis used a measured transmissivity of 50,000 gallons per day/foot 

(gpdlft), which is thought to be representative of the regional carbonate aquifer and a 

transmissivity of 300,000 gpdlft, which is thought to be representative of the local Willow Spring 

fault zone. The Applicants "scaled-up" the pumping test transmissivities to a basin scale by 

11 State Engineer's Office, Waler for Nevada, Siale of Nevada WaleI' PlanJling Reporl No.3, Oct. 1971. 
12 Exhibit No. 15. 
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mUltiplying the values by three. Outflow is thought to occur in a southwesterly direction parallel 

to the axis of the Kane Springs Valley. The outflow corridor is estimated to be four-miles wide 

by 3,000 feet thick. They attribute one-half mile of the four-mile width to the fault zone and the 

remaining three and one-half miles to regional conditions, each having separate hydraulic 

gradients for their flow calculations. For the regional flow they used a gradient of 0.005, and for 

the structural zone they used a gradient of 0.0005. Total basin outflow was calculated to be 

16,000 acre-feet per year.23 

The State Engineer finds several irregularities and inconsistencies with the Applicants' 

analysis. The Applicants' hydrologist used a hydraulic gradient of 0.005 for the regional 

component of flow based on the water levels in wells CSVM-3 and CE-VF-2, which are located 

near the center of Coyote Spring Valley, rather than using a hydraulic gradient of 0.0004 for the 

regional component of flow based on water levels in wells KPW-l and CSVM-4, which are 

located at the outflow of Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin and better situated to measure 

the applicable gradient.24 The Applicant calculated the regional component of outflow to be 

15,000 acre-feet per year using the hydraulic gradient of 0.005 as opposed to an outflow 

calculation of 1,250 acre-feet per year using the lower hydraulic gradient of 0.0004. The State 

Engineer finds that using the higher hydraulic gradient of 0.005 to compute outflow from Kane 

Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin rather than using the lower gradient of 0.0004 between 

KPW-l and CSVM-4 is in error and inconsistent with the Applicants' documented conceptual 

view of the flow system.25 

The Applicants' estimate of outflow along the structural zone was computed separately 

using a transmissivity of 900,000 gpd/ft and a hydraulic gradient of 0.0005. The State Engineer 

finds the Applicant incorrectly approximated the hydraulic gradient to be 0.0005, and should 

have used a hydraulic gradient of 0.0004.26 Based on the actual hydraulic gradient of 0.0004 the 

resulting basin outflow along the structural zone would then be 1,000 acre-feet per year. Adding 

the estimated outflow along the structural zone of 1,000 acre-feet per year to the regional flow of 

1,250 acre-feet per year results in an estimated basin outflow of 2,250 acre-feet annually rather 

than the Applicants' calculation of 16,000 acre-feet annually. 

23 Exhibit No. 16. 
24 Ibid., pp. 20 and 31. 
25 Exhibit No. 17, P 21. 
26 Exhibit No. 20, p. 11. 
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The State Engineer finds the Applicants' inflow and outflow analyses lack sufficient data 

to provide a reliable estimate of basin boundary flows. Furthermore, he finds the Applicants' 

conceptual analyses were overly interpretive and, in part, were inconsistent with their conceptual 

model of regional flow. The State Engineer finds that sufficient data were not collected or 

presented to substantiate the Applicants' estimate of subsurface flow into or out of the Kane 

Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin. 

VI. 

The Applicant presented a witness to address the geochemical framework of the Kane 

Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin and the White River flow system south ofthe Pahranagat shear 

zone. The witness presented evidence on stable isotopes, major ion chemistry, and carbon-14 

analyses.27 In summary, the geochemical evidence supports the ground-water gradient data that 

indicates Kane Springs Valley ground water flows into Coyote Spring Valley and that, in general, 

water in the White River flow system flows from north to south and mixes with local recharge en 

route to discharge areas. The witness presented deuterium data collected from springs in Kane 

Springs Valley believed to represent local recharge water, springs in Pahranagat Valley believed to 

represent regional carbonate water, and ground water from KPW -1 believed to represent a mix of 

local recharge water and regional carbonate water. Using a mixing equation the witness computed 

the percent of regional carbonate ground water from the KPW -1 deuterium sample to equal 77 

percent. 28 If the same analysis is repeated using oxygen-I8 instead of deuterium, the percent of 

regional carbonate ground water from the KPW-l oxygen-I8 sample equals 87 percent.29 As 

previously discussed, the reinterpretation of the Applicants' subsurface outflow analysis resulted in 

approximately 2,250 acre-feet per year of basin outflow from the Kane Springs Valley 

Hydrographic Basin. The State Engineer finds applying the percentages of regional carbonate 

ground water from KPW-I for both the deuterium and oxygen-I 8 samples, the local ground-water 

recharge component of the outflow would therefore be approximately 518 acre-feet per year and 

293 acre-feet per year, respectively. These values appear to support the reconnaissance estimate of 

500 acre-feet per year of recharge, however, it is recognized that the re-interpreted outflow is only 

an estimate, and its value is limited due to uncertain hydraulic parameters.30 

27 Testimony ofR. Glanzman; Exhibit No. 32. 
18 Exhibit No. 117, p. 10. 
19 Exhibit No. 34, Table 1, p. 2. 
)0 State Engineer's Office, Waterfor Nevada, State of Nevada Water Planning Report No.3, Oct. 1971. 
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VII. 

Testimony and evidence was presented in an attempt to support a determination that 

significantly more water is locally recharged in the Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin than 

previously reported. The Applicants presented Mr. Walker, who possesses a background in range 

management, as a witness who used plant communities as a method to estimate precipitation. 

However, Mr. Walker also testified that the use of plant communities as a method to calculate 

recharge does not exist, and his methodology for calculating recharge is not used anywhere else in 

the United States.3l The Applicants then presented Mr. Lewis for the purpose of using Mr. 

Walker's estimation of precipitation for the establishment of new recharge estimates in the Kane 

Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin.32 

Reconnaissance investigations by the U.S.G.S. estimate the combined recharge for Kane 

Springs Valley, Coyote Spring Valley and the Muddy River Springs Area to be 2,600 acre-feet 

annually.33 Recharge for Kane Springs Valley was further delineated in 1971 and was estimated to 

be 500 acre-feet per year.34 The methods and estimates presented by the Applicants in Exhibit Nos. 

29 and 30 used four estimates of precipitation. With each of the four estimates of precipitation, 

ground-water recharge was then estimated using two methods: a version of the well-known Maxey­

Eakin technique and a water budget method. In total, the Applicants computed eight recharge 

estimates ranging from 5,300 to 14,155 acre-feet per year 35 

One method for estimating precipitation tied plant communities to precipitation and 

elevation, and then used elevation zones to distribute precipitation throughout the basin. The 

second method used a spatial distribution of vegetative zones and their respective precipitation 

based on a United States Department of Agriculture, Natural Resource Conservation Service 

technical guide for ecological site descriptions.36 A third precipitation method used PRISM37 

31 Transcript, pp. 244, 264. 
32 Transcript, pp. 245-246. 
33 T.E. Eakin, Ground- water Resources - Reconnaissance Series Report 25, Ground-water Appraisal of Coyote 
Spring and Kane Spring Valleys and Muddy River Springs Area, Lincoln and Clark Counties, Nevada, State of 
Nevada, Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, United States Department of Interior, Geologic Survey, 
February 1964. 
34 Transcript, p. 253. 
35 Exhibit No. 16, p. 5. 
36 Exhibit No. 29, pp. 6, 15-17. 
37 PRISM - Parameter-elevation Regressions on Independent Slopes Model and is a method of spatially distributing 
precipitation. 
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modeled precipitation.38 The last precipitation estimate was based on a local altitude-precipitation 

method developed by the Las Vegas Valley Water District.39 For each of these precipitation 

estimates, Mr. Lewis applied both a numerical form of the Maxey-Eakin technique and water 

budget approach for estimating recharge. 

However, Mr. Halford, as expert witness for the Protestant National Park Service, testified 

that the use of the Maxey-Eakin technique in each of these cases was in error,40 because using the 

Maxey-Eakin recharge coefficients with any precipitation estimates other than the Hardman 

precipitation map is inappropriate. The Maxey-Eakin recharge coefficients are married to the 

Hardman map and cannot be used otherwise.41 Mr. Halford testified that if one is going to develop 

a new method of estimating recharge they must have the precipitation maps for the area of interest 

and controls on ground-water discharge, and then they can develop new recharge coefficients based 

on that information.42 

The Applicants also used a water-budget approach with each of the precipitation estimates 

to arrive at an estimate of recharge. In the approach for Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin, 

it was estimated that recharge is equal to precipitation less the sum of evapotranspiration (ET), 

surface runoff and spring discharge. Surface runoff and spring discharge were each estimated to 

average a few hundred acre-feet annually; therefore, recharge was estimated to be approximately 

equal to precipitation minus ET. Due to the lack ofET measurements or estimates ofET in Kane 

Springs Valley, the Applicants used data from a United States Geologic Survey report on 

evapotranspiration in Ruby Valley, over 200 miles to the north.43 Their evidence provides that a 

report prepared by Berger in 2001 reports an estimate of ET using the Bowen-ratio method for an 

upland-shrub non-phreatophytic plant community of 12 inches per year where annual precipitation 

was estimated to be 13 to 15 inches.44 On that basis, the Applicants assume 12 inches per year of 

ET for areas receiving 13 to 15 inches of precipitation in Kane Springs Valley and 13 inches per 

year ofET for areas receiving greater than 15 inches per year of precipitation. 

38 Exhibit No. 29, p. 9. 
39 Exhibit No. 54, public administrative hearing before the State Engineer, July 16-20,23-27,2001, official records 
in the Office of the State Engineer. 
40 Transcript, pp. 489-520. 
41 Transcript, p. 493. 
42 Transcript, p. 495. 
43 Exhibit No. 29, p. 13. 
44 [hid. 
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However, the State Engineer believes the Applicants misinterpreted and/or misapplied the 

data from the Berger 2001 report, which states that precipitation at the Ruby Lake National Wildlife 

Refuge site for the 2000 water year was only 7.74 inches, or 58 percent of the 1961 to 1990 30-year 

average of 13.3 inches.45 During this same time period, ET at the upland-shrub site was 11.96 

inches.46 The report does not indicate what ET rates might be in the upland-shrub community 

during average precipitation years, although the data does support higher daily ET rates in the 

summer months when there was an increase in available soil moisture from precipitation.
47 

In 

addition, the Applicants did not provide evidence suggesting that the ET rates in areas that receive 

greater than 15 inches per year would remain constant at 13 inches. The Applicants also did not 

address other factors that differ between Kane Springs Valley and Ruby Valley that could have an 

effect on ET rates such as differences in temperature, solar radiation, time and type of precipitation, 

and variable plant species distinct from those in Kane Springs Valley. 

The State Engineer recognizes the difficulty in accurately estimating recharge and even the 

Applicants admit that estimates of recharge are extremely problematic as it is a parameter that 

cannot be measured directly.48 The State Engineer agrees that recharge is a very difficult parameter 

to measure, and if it is used to determine perennial yield, the uncertainty in the estimates must be 

recognized and a conservative approach taken. Given the uncertainties inherent in estimating 

recharge and the validity in the testimony of the Protestant's expert stating that the recharge 

technique applied was in error and inappropriate, the State Engineer finds that the Applicants' 

evidence and testimony lack the scientific and practical basis to substantiate the proffered 

recharge of 5,000 to 14,000 acre-feet annually and are hereby discounted and not accepted. 

However, the State Engineer also recognizes that the current reconnaissance estimate of average 

annual recharge is probably low. 

The Death Valley flow system area lies west and southwest of Kane Springs Valley. 

Because the Kane Springs Valley climate, latitude, geology and soil types are similar to the Death 

Valley flow system basins, it is reasonable to expect that similar precipitation amounts will result in 

45 D.L. Berger, M.1. Johnson, M.L. Tumbusch, Estimates 0/ Evapotranspiration/rom the Ruby Lake National 
Wildlife Re/uge Area, Ruby Valley, Northeastern Nevada, May 1999-0ctober 2000, Water-Resources Investigations 
Report 01-4234, United States Department ofInterior, Geological Survey, Nevada Division of Water Resources and 
the United States Department of Interior, Fish and Wildlife Service, 2001. 
46 Jd. at 25. 
47 Id. at 20. 
48 Transcript, p. 267. 
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similar amounts of ground-water recharge. Recharge within the Death Valley regional flow system 

has been calibrated to measured discharge, and therefore provides a greater level of certainty than 

recharge estimates made without a comparative discharge.49 Several basins within the Death 

Valley regional flow system have similar amounts of precipitation as Kane Springs Valley with the 

ground-water recharge in those basins ranging from 1% to 2% of total precipitation.5o Recent 

estimates of precipitation in the Kane Springs Valley range from 120,000 to 140,000 acre-feet per 

year as opposed to the Hardman estimate of 80,000 acre-feet per year. 51 Using a recharge to 

precipitation ratio of 1% to 2% as found in the Death Valley regional flow model for basins with 

similar amounts of precipitation, the recharge in Kane Springs Valley would be 1,200 to 2,800 acre­

feet per year, which is substantially less than the Applicants' estimate of recharge of 5,000 to 

14,000 acre-feet annually. This is a qualitative comparison, and is not proposed by the State 

Engineer to definitively estimate recharge in Kane Springs Valley, but serves as a barometer, for 

comparative purposes only, of recharge estimates in this area. The State Engineer finds recharge in 

Kane Springs Valley is uncertain, but is likely greater than the reconnaissance estimate of 500 acre­

feet per year and less than the Applicant's estimates of 5,000 to 14,000 acre-feet per year. 

VIII. 

The perennial yield of a ground-water reservoir may be defined as the maximum amount of 

ground water that can be salvaged each year over the long term without depleting the ground-water 

reservoir. The perennial yield cannot be more than the natural recharge to a ground water basin and 

in some cases is less. In determining the amount of water available for appropriation in basins 

where outflow from one basin is part of the inflow to another basin, the State Engineer must take 

into consideration the amount of water appropriated in the upgradient basin and discount the 

amount from inflow into the downgradient basin. If the water appropriated in an upgradient basin 

is not deducted from the amount which discharges to the downgradient basin, it creates the potential 

for double accounting and regional over appropriation. Thus, the State Engineer is still able to 

manage the ground-water basins as they have been historically managed administratively, but also 

take into consideration the concerns that arise for ground-water basins that are hydrologically 

connected. 

49 Belcher, W., ed., 2004 Death Valley Regional Ground-Water Flow System, Nevada and California­
Hydrogeologic Framework and Transient Ground-Water Flow Model, USGS SIR 2004-4205. 
50 Belcher, W., ed., 2004, Death Valley Regional Flow Model, USGS SIR 2004-4205. 
51 Exhibit 16, p. 5. 
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The Applicants propose that ground water flows from upgradient basins through Kane 

Springs Valley into downgradient ba~ns. In the case of the Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic 

Basin, the upgradient basin and the downgradient basin is the Coyote Spring Valley Hydrographic 

Basin. That is, ground water is proposed to flow from northern Coyote Spring Valley into Kane 

Springs Valley then back into Coyote Spring Valley. The Protestant NPS argues that the State 

Engineer should consider any inflow into Kane Springs Valley from the Coyote Spring Valley as 

previously allocated in Coyote Spring Valley and the subsequent outflow from Kane Springs Valley 

should be permitted to flow into Coyote Spring Valley in its entirety to meet the approximate 

16,000 acre-feet per year of senior appropriated rights there. The majority of those senior water 

rights were issued with the intent to develop ground water from the White River regional carbonate­

rock aquifer system. Given the unique hydrologic connection between the Kane Springs Valley 

Hydrographic Basin and the Coyote Spring Valley Hydrographic Basin, the development of ground 

water within Kane Springs Valley will ultimately affect water levels and flows in the White River 

regional carbonate-rock aquifer system. However, the State Engineer believes a small amount of 

water can be developed in the Kane Springs Valley and not unreasonably impact existing rights in 

the discharge areas of the White River carbonate-rock aquifer system, which are already fully 

appropriated. Well KPW-1 lies within 1,000 feet of Coyote Spring Valley and pumping 

simulations by the Applicant show a cone of depression extending well into Coyote Spring Valley. 

To further minimize potential effects on existing rights in the discharge areas of the White River 

carbonate-rock aquifer system, the State Engineer willlirnit the amount of ground water that can be 

pumped from wells in Kane springs Valley near the boundary with Coyote Spring Valley. After 

careful consideration of the uncertainties regarding the ranges of ground-water recharge, 

quantification of subsurface inflows and outflows, the demonstrated connection of Kane Springs 

Valley with the White River Regional flow system, and senior appropriated rights in the down­

gradient basins, the State Engineer finds that 1,000 acre-feet is a reasonable amount to allow for 

appropriation from Kane Springs Valley. 

IX. 

Nevada Revised Statute § 533.370(5) provides that an applicant provide proof satisfactory 

to the State Engineer of his intention in good faith to construct any work necessary to apply the 

water to the intended beneficial use with reasonable diligence and his financial ability and 
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reasonable expectation to actually construct the work and apply the water to the intended beneficial 

use with reasonable diligence. Nevada Revised Statute § 533.375 provides that in the case of an 

application or multiple applications proposing to divert more than 10 cubic feet per second (such as 

the applications under consideration here) the State Engineer may require in the case of an 

incorporated company the submission of articles of incorporation, the names and places of 

residence of directors and officers and the amount of its authorized and paid-Up capital. If the 

applicant is not an incorporated company, he may require a statement as to the name of the person 

proposing to construct the work, and a showing of facts necessary to enable him to determine 

whether the applicant has the financial ability to carry out the proposed work and whether the 

application has been made in good faith. 

The Applicants presented the Chairwoman for the Lincoln County Water District, Rhonda 

Hornbeck, as a witness who testified that the Lincoln County Water District through its partner 

Vidler Water Company has an agreement with Coyote Springs Investment (CSI) to provide 

wholesale water to CSI's development. Additionally, the witness indicated they are working with 

the United States Department of Interior, Bureau of Land Management to gain a right of way to 

bring water from the wellhead down to the CSI property. The testimony indicated that a general 

improvement district is in place, as is a planned unit development.52 The Applicants provided 

evidence on the plan of development, which is a report that was submitted to the United States 

Department of Interior, Bureau of Land Management, that identifies how the ground water will be 

withdrawn, how the pipes will be installed, what equipment is needed to complete the well and 

addresses the pipeline project to deliver the water to the place where it will be used, and pipeline 

permitting is underway. 53 

When questioned whether the Lincoln County Water District had the fmancial resources to 

place the water to beneficial use, the witness for the Lincoln County Water District provided several 

scenarios as to how those financial resources might be obtained, but did not provide any specific 

evidence of having the financial resources in place. The testimony indicated that the possibilities 

include: (1) floating a bond with its partner Vidler Water Company; (2) asking the State of Nevada 

52 Transcript, pp. 388-389; Exhibit No. 41; Exhibit No. 122 (Agreement dated Oct. 17,2005, between Coyote 
Springs Investment, LLC and Lincoln County Water District and Vidler Water Company - marked as an exhibit after 
the hearing when document was filed upon request of the State Engineer.) 
53 Transcript, p. 95; Exhibit No. 26. 
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for a low-interest loan; or (3) a development agreement with CSI, where CSI would pay for the 

infrastructure to place the water to beneficial use; however the witness then testified there is already 

an agreement in place with CSI paying the cost of infrastructure. 54 

Dorothy-Timian Palmer, as a witness for the Applicants, testified that Vidler Water 

Company has already drilled a production well and a monitoring well and has spent a considerable 

amount of money on field work and analyses of that field work and has the financial ability to 

construct the work necessary to put the water to beneficial use.55 The Agreement between CSI, the 

Lincoln County Water District and Vidler Water Company provides that CSI will purchase "all 

water available within the Kane Springs Basin." "Upon payment in full of the purchase price of 

Kane Water, the DISTRICT and VIDLER will convey the Kane Water by Water Rights Deed to 

CSI and will partially assign to CSI certain rights and delegate to CSI certain obligations related to 

the underlying water rights permit(s).,,56 The Applicants only intend to develop the water to the 

wellhead and CSI will develop the infrastructure to deliver the water from the wellhead to the 

development. 57 

Harvey Whittemore, as a witness for the Applicants, testified that within the CSI project 

there would be two separate general improvement districts. The one in Lincoln County has already 

been formed; however, the one in Clark County was to be formed in June 2006. The testimony 

indicated that the water rights already held by CSI will be assigned for the benefit of the general 

improvement districts and the Clark and Lincoln County Commissions will act as trustees for the 

general improvement districts. Mr. Whittemore indicated that the development is at a stage where 

all of the approvals necessary for the first phase of construction have been acquired with respect to 

Clark County. As to the Lincoln County portion of the project, it is still subject to the completion 

of a multi-species habitat conservation plan, as well as a number of additional approvals from 

federal agencies. The water rights at issue here would ultimately be owned by the developer CSI 

and then transferred to the Lincoln County General Improvement District.58 CSI has already 

received approval in the form of parcel maps, zoning entitlement and development agreements for 

49,000 units in Clark County and 110,000 units in Lincoln County. 59 

54 Transcript, pp. 392-393. 
55 Transcript, pp. 458-46l. 
56 Exhibit No. 122. 
57 Transcript, pp. 412-415. 
58 Transcript, pp. 419-420. 
59 Transcript, pp. 427, 439; Exhibit Nos. 43, 44, 45. 
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The State Engineer finds the Applicants provided proof satisfactory to the State Engineer of 

an intention in good faith to construct any work necessary to apply the water to the intended 

beneficial use with reasonable diligence and a reasonable expectation to actually construct the work 

and apply the water to the intended beneficial use with reasonable diligence. 

x. 
Testimony and evidence indicate there are no permitted or certificated groundwater rights in 

Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin.60 However, the witness for the NPS testified that Kane 

Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin and Coyote Spring Valley are hydrographically and 

hydrologically one and the same basin. Approximately 16,100 acre-feet have been appropriated in 

Coyote Spring Valley and applications are pending for another 200,000 acre-feet annually. 

Therefore, there is no water available for appropriation.61 The State Engineer [mds no water has 

been appropriated in Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin and by limiting the quantity of 

water authorized for appropriation, the potential impacts to existing rights in down-gradient 

hydrographic basins will be minimized. 

XI. 

Nevada Revised Statute § 533.370(6) provides that in determining whether an application 

for an interbasin transfer of ground water must be rejected the State Engineer shall consider: (a) 

whether the applicant has justified the need to import water from another basin; (b) if the State 

Engineer determines that a plan for conservation of water is advisable for the basin into which the 

water is to be imported, whether the applicant has demonstrated that such a plan has been adopted 

and is effectively being carried out; (c) whether the proposed action is environmentally sound as it 

relates to the basin from which the water is exported; (d) whether the proposed action is an 

appropriate long-term use which will not unduly limit the future growth and development in the 

basin from which the water is exported; and (e) any other factor the State Engineer determines is 

relevant. 

Testimony was provided as to the extent of the project proposed in Coyote Spring Valley 

and estimates of the quantity of water necessary to carry out the project. That testimony 

satisfactorily addresses the provision of whether the applicant has justified the need to import water 

60 Transcript, pp. 208-209. 
61 Transcript, pp. 589-594. 

SE ROA 716
JA_000317



Ruling 
Page 19 

from another basin.62 Testimony was provided that indicated conservation measures are in place 

for the planned development similar to traditional development measures associated with 

development in southern Nevada that have been adopted and imposed,63 and there is no evidence 

that the appropriation of water from Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin will damage the 

environment of the valley. 

Testimony was provided that indicated there is no private land within Kane Springs Valley 

Hydrographic Basin, rather all land within the valley is owned by the federal government; 

therefore, the use ofthe water will not unduly limit future growth and development in Kane Springs 

Valley Hydrographic Basin.64 

The State Engineer finds the evidence does not support rejection of the application for an 

interbasin transfer of water. 

XII. 

Witnesses for both the Applicants (Glanzman)65 and the Protestant NPS (Van Liew)66 agree 

that the discharge at Rogers and Blue Point Springs in the Lake Mead National Recreation Area is 

not entirely carbonate-rock aquifer discharge, but is composed of some local precipitation that 

infiltrates and mixes with the carbonate-rock aquifer water that is flowing toward land surface along 

fault structures. Mr. Glanzman testified that in general when water in the White River flow system 

flows from north to south it mixes with local recharge en route to discharge areas at the Muddy 

River Springs Area and Rogers Springs and Blue Point Springs.67 Using isotopic data, Mr. 

Glanzman estimated that approximately 25% of the discharge at Rogers Springs and Blue Point 

Springs could be characterized as regional carbonate water. For purposes of his analysis, Mr. 

Glanzman considered water in the carbonate aquifer of Pahranagat Valley to be 100% carbonate 

water.68,69 Mr. Van Liew testified that discharge from the White River flow system appears to be 

predominantly at the Muddy River Springs, Rogers Springs and Blue Point Springs and raised the 

62 Transcript, pp. 427-445. 
63 Transcript, pp. 428-429. 
64 Transcript, pp. 207-208. 
65 Transcript, pp. 115-203, 221-236. 
66 Transcript, pp. 523-621. 
67 Exhibit No. 34; Transcript, pp. 115 -203, 221-236. 
68 Transcript, pp. 137-138. 
69 Exhibit No. 117. 
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argument that there does not seem to be anywhere else for the ground water to flow. In addition, he 

doubted much water moved out to the Lake Mead area and testified that the ground-water gradient 

supports that conclusion. 

The State Engineer finds there is not substantial evidence that the appropriation of the 

limited quantity being granted under this ruling will likely impair the flow at Muddy River Springs, 

Rogers Springs or Blue Point Springs. 

XIII. 

By letter dated February 6, 2006, the NPS and FWS requested the State Engineer amend 

State Engineer's Order No. 1169 to include the Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Area.?O The 

reasoning behind the request is that these agencies believe Kane Springs Valley and Coyote Spring 

Valley, while administratively classified as separate hydrographic basins, are actually a single 

distinct hydrologic drainage basin and should be managed as such. However, during the public 

administrative hearing, the FWS indicated that the resolution of its protests pursuant to the 

Stipulation also goes to its statements in the February 6, 2006, letter. Thus, the Stipulation was 

presented in place of the FWS request to include Kane Springs Valley within the provisions of 

Order No. 1169.71 However, the request by the NPS to include the Kane Springs Valley 

Hydrographic Basin within the provisions of Order No. 1169 still remains. Thus, two separate 

agencies within the United States Department of Interior take different positions with regard to the 

request to include Kane Springs within the provisions of Order No. 1169. 

The witness for the Protestant NPS testified as to various reports and information that all 

conclude that the discharge from the Muddy River Springs is regional in nature, that a sufficient 

quantity does not come from local recharge to support the discharge and that a substantial portion of 

the discharge of the region is concentrated in the Muddy River Springs Area.72 Citing to Exhibit 

No. 91, the witness noted that the writer of that report found that the "Coyote Springs Valley, Kane 

Springs Valley and the Muddy River Springs hydrographic areas (1,025 square miles) in southern 

Lincoln and Clark Counties have been combined for this report because the areas are hydrologically 

and topographically connected.,,?3 The faults in the area are believed to control the majority of 

70 Exhibit No.1 O. 
71 Transcript, pp. 12-13. 
72 Transcript, pp. 530-581; See, Exhibit Nos. 87,88,91. 
73 Transcript, p. 533. 
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ground-water movement through the carbonate aquifer, including Kane Springs Wash fault zone, 

which the witness believes to be a conduit for flow to Coyote Spring Valley.74 Additionally, the 

NPS witness believes that the Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin and the Coyote Spring 

Valley are one hydrographic area.75 

A witness for the Applicants indicated that there is a presumption that the Kane Springs 

Wash fault zone is effectively a no-flow boundary such that water flowing into Kane Springs 

Valley Hydrographic Basin flows out of Kane Springs Wash into Coyote Spring Valley, and that 

the water that is recharged in Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin flows into Coyote Spring 

Valley.76 Additionally, evidence developed from the well pump test and analyzed in conjunction 

with other evidence, such as the implication of a flat gradient, indicates a relatively high 

transmissivity across the southern half of the study area, indicating a high potential for regional 

ground-water flow.77 

The State Engineer finds the evidence indicates a strong hydrologic connection between 

Kane Springs Valley and Coyote Spring Valley, specifically, that ground water flows from Kane 

Springs Valley into Coyote Spring Valley. However, carbonate water levels near the boundary 

between Kane Springs Valley and Coyote Spring Valley are approximately 1,875 feet in elevation, 

and in southern Coyote Spring Valley and throughout most of the other basins covered under Order 

No. 1169, carbonate-rock aquifer water levels are mostly between 1,800 feet and 1,825 feet. This 

marked difference in head supports the probability of a low-permeability structure or change in 

lithology between Kane Springs Valley and the southern part of Coyote Spring Valley. The State 

Engineer finds Order No. 1169 was issued to address the requests for the additional appropriation 

of water filed in Coyote Spring Valley, but the focus of the additional study ordered is the Muddy 

River Springs Area. The State Engineer finds there is not substantial evidence that the appropriation 

of a limited quantity of water in Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin will have any 

measurable impact on the Muddy River Springs that warrants the inclusion of Kane Springs Valley 

in Order No. 1169. Therefore, the State Engineer denies the request to hold these applications in 

abeyance and include Kane Spring Valley within the provisions of Order No. 1169. 

74 Transcript, pp. 545-550. 
75 Transcript, pp. 589-591. 
76 Transcript, pp. 291, 303. 
77 Transcript, pp. 329-330. 
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XIV. 

The Applicants requested that the State Engineer act on Applications 72220 and 72221 and 

grant them for a total combined duty of 5,000 acre-feet annually and hold Applications 72218 and 

72219 in abeyance. The State Engineer finds that the total amount of 1,000 acre-feet annually of 

groundwater available to be appropriated in Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin is less than 

the requested 5,000 acre-feet annually; therefore the State Engineer finds he will not hold any of the 

applications in abeyance. 

CONcr ,lTSJONS 

I. 

The State Engineer has jurisdiction over the parties and the subject matter of this action and 

determination.78 

II. 

The State Engineer is prohibited by law from granting a permit to appropriate the public 

waters where: 79 

A. there is no unappropriated water at the proposed source; 
B. the proposed use or change conflicts with existing rights; 
C. the proposed use or change conflicts with protectible interests in existing 

domestic wells as set forth in NRS § 533.024; or 
D. the proposed use or change threatens to prove detrimental to the public 

interest. 

III. 

The State Engineer concludes that to permit the appropriation of water in an amount greater 

than permitted under this ruling will conflict with existing rights and threaten to prove detrimental 

to the public interest. 

BlTUNG 

The protests to the applications are hereby upheld in part and overruled in part. Application 

72220 is hereby granted for a duty of 500 acre-feet annually. Applications 72218, 72219, and 

72221 are hereby granted for a total combined duty of 500 acre-feet annually. 

78 
NRS chapters 533 and 534. 

79 NRS 533.370(5). 
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Applications 72218, 72219, 72220, and 72221 are granted subject to: 

1. The payment of statutory permit fees; 

2. A monitoring plan to be approved by this office. 

TT /jm 

Dated this __ 2n_d_ day of 

February 2007 

Respectfully submitted, 

~ ~-,--~L-).P,e. 
TRACY TAYLOR, P.E. 
State Engineer 
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• IN THE OFFICE OF THE STATE ENGINEER
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN THE MATTER OF APPLICATIONS 74147, )
74148, 74149, AND 74150 FILED TO )
APPROPRIATE THE UNDERGROUND)
WATERS OF THE KANE SPRINGS VALLEY )
HYDROGRAPHIC BASIN (206), LINCOLN )
COUNTY, NEVADA. )

GENERAL

I.

RULING

#5987

Application 74147 was filed on April 10, 2006, by the Lincoln County Water District and

Vidler Water Company, Inc., to appropriate 6.0 cubic feet per second (cfs) of water from an

underground source within the Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin for municipal purposes

within the Coyote Spring Valley Hydrographic Basin more specifically described as portions of

T.8S., R.62E., T.8S., R.63E., T.8S., R.64E., T.9S., R.6IE., T.9S., R.62E., T.9S., T.63E., T.9S.,

• R.64E., T.IOS., R.6IE., all of T.1OS., R.62E., portions of T.IOS., R.63E., T.1OS., R.64E., T.IIS.,

R.6IE., all of T.II S., R.62E., portions of T.II S., R.63E., T.II S., R.64E., T.l2S., R.6IE., all of

T.l2S., R.62E., all of T.12S., R.63E., portions of T.12S., R.64E., T.12.5S., R.6IE., T.12.5S.,

R.62E., T.13S., R.6IE., all ofT. 13S., R.62E., portions ofT. 13S., R.63E., T.13S., R.64E., T.13.5S.,

R.63E., T.l4S. R.6IE., all of T.14S., R.62E., portions of T.l4S., R.63E., T.l5S., R.6IE., T.l5S.,

R.62E., T.I5S., R.63E., T.16S., R.62E., M.D.B.&M. The proposed point of diversion is described

as being located in the SWY4 SEY4 of Section 25, T.8S., R.65E., M.D.B.&M.'

II.

Application 74148 was filed on April 10, 2006, by the Lincoln County Water District and

Vidler Water Company, Inc., to appropriate 6.0 cfs ofwater from an underground source within the

Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin for municipal purposes within Coyote Spring Valley

Hydrographic Basin as more specifically described above. The proposed point of diversion is

described as being located in the SEY4 SWV. of Section 31, T.9S., R.65E., M.D.B.&M?

• , File No. 74147, official records in the Office of the State Engineer.
2 File No. 74148, official records in the Office of the State Engineer.
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III.

Application 74149 was filed on April 10,2006, by the Lincoln County Water District and

Vidler Water Company, Inc., to appropriate 6.0 cfs of water from an underground source within the

Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin for municipal purposes within Coyote Spring Valley

Hydrographic Basin as more specifically described in Section I of this ruling. The proposed point

of diversion is described as being located in the SEY. SWY. of Section 6, T.11 S., R.64E.,

M.D.B.&M.3

IV.

Application 74150 was filed on April 10, 2006, by Lincoln County Water District and

Vidler Water Company, Inc., to appropriate 6.0 cfs of water from an underground source within the

Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin for municipal purposes within Coyote Spring Valley

Hydrographic Basin more specifically as described in Section I of this ruling. The proposed point

of diversion is described as being located in the SEY4 SWY4 of Section 11, T.9S., R.65E.,

M.D.B.&M.4

V.

Applications 74147, 74148, 74149 and 74150 were timely protested by the United States

Department ofinterior, Bureau ofindian Affairs, the Moapa Band of Paiute Indians and the United

States Department of Interior, National Park Service on various grounds as sununarized below. 1,2,3,4

The Bureau of Indians Affairs alleges that the proposed diversions will impact the water

rights of the Moapa Band of Paiute Indians and other state-based water rights, there is no

unappropriated water in the Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin and the proposed applications

could adversely affect the implementation and success of a Memorandum of Agreement with the

United States Fish and Wildlife Service, Coyote Springs Investment, LLC, the Moapa Valley Water

District and the Southern Nevada Water Authority designed to protect the Muddy River Springs

environment and other regional water resources.

The Moapa Band of Paiute Indians protested the applications on the grounds that there is no

unappropriated water in the source of supply, the proposed withdrawals would conflict with

3 File No. 74149, official records in the Office of the State Engineer.
4 File No. 74150, official records in the Office of the State Engineer.
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existing rights, especially those of the Tribe, the proposed withdrawals would threaten to prove

detrimental to the public interest, the proposed withdrawals would be inconsistent and subvert the

Applicants' Stipulation to limit ground-water withdrawals under Permits 72218 through 72221, the

proposed withdrawals would undermine the efficacy of the critically important Memorandum of

Understanding recently entered into by the United States Fish and Wildlife Service, the Southern

Nevada Water Authority, Coyote Springs Investment, LLC, the Moapa Valley Water District and

the Tribe to maintain Muddy Springs flows to protect the endangered Moapa Dace.

The National Park Service protested the applications on the grounds that there is no water

available for appropriation because the committed water resources exceed the ground-water

recharge, the approval and development of the proposed appropriations will impair the water rights

of the United States and the public interest would not be served by diminishing or impairing the

water-related resources in the Lake Mead National Recreation Area.

FINDINGS OF FACT

I.

In State Engineer's Ruling No. 5712, dated February 2, 2007, the State Engineer addressed

applications filed by these same Applicants to appropriate ground water from the Kane Springs

Valley Hydrographic Basin5 In that ruling, the State Engineer addressed the Applicants' argument

regarding ground water availability in the Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin and rejected the

Applicants' argument and evidence for the appropriation of ground water above the quantity

granted in that ruling. The State Engineer finds that with the issuance of State Engineer's Ruling

No. 5712, there is no additional water available for appropriation in the Kane Springs Valley

Hydrographic Basin.

CONCLUSIONS

I.

The State Engineer has jurisdiction over the parties and the subject matter of this action and

d " 6etermmatlOn.

5 State Engineer's Ruling No. 5712, dated February 2, 2007, official records in the Office of the
State Engineer.
6 NRS chapters 533 and 534.
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II.

The State Engineer is prohibited by law from granting a permit to appropriate the public

waters where: 7

A. there is no unappropriated water at the proposed source;
B. the proposed use or change conflicts with existing rights;
C. the proposed use or change conflicts with protectible interests in existing

domestic wells as set forth in NRS § 533.024; or
D. the proposed use or change threatens to prove detrimental to the public

interest.

III.

The State Engineer concludes that there is no additional ground water available for

appropriation in the Kane Springs Valley Hydrographic Basin; therefore, the granting of any

appropriation under Applications 74147, 74148, 74149 or 74150 would conflict with existing rights

and thus threaten to prove detrimental to the public interest.

RULING

Applications 74147, 74148, 74149 and 74150 are hereby denied on the grounds there is no

unappropriated water in the source and to grant additional water rights would conflict with existing

rights and threaten to prove detrimental to the public interest. No ruling is made on the merits of

the protests.

RespectfulXYs bmitted,

. 'Pi'
1>''__-

"TRACY TAYLOR, P.E.
State Engineer

TT Ijm

Dated this 29th day of

April 2009

7 NRS 533.370(5).
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Boundary of the Lower White River Flow System 

NSE Order 1303 requests the reports filed in response to the order address the “geographic 

boundary of the hydrologically connected groundwater and surface water systems comprising 

the Lower White River Flow System” (NSE Order 1303, p 13).  The NSE has already outlined 

reasons for including CSV, MRSA, Garnet Valley, Hidden Valley, a portion of the Black 

Mountains Area, and the Lower Moapa Valley.  The analysis herein and the analyses of USDOI 

(2013), SNWA (2013), Myers (2013), and NSE Order 5462 found a large high transmissivity area 

within the carbonate aquifer of these areas and basin fill aquifers within CSV, MRSA and Lower 

Moapa Valley that should be managed as one basin. 

Information presented herein suggests that Kane Springs Valley should be added to the LWRFS.  

Because water levels in that basin are just a few feet higher than in adjoining portions of CSV, 

the gradient between them is very low.  Pumping in Kane Springs Valley that decreases that 

gradient would decrease flow into CSV in a time frame likely measured in less than a few years.  

I base the time frame estimate on the rapid response observed in the aquifer in CSV and the 

assumption that a carbonate aquifer extending into Kane Springs Valley would also have a high 

transmissivity.  Because of the very low perennial yield in Kane Springs Valley and lack of inflow 

to the valley from upgradient valleys, pumpage in Kane Springs Valley could reverse the 

gradient and draw water from CSV.  Considering how fast MX-5 pumping manifest through the 

carbonate aquifer, a decreased flow into or reversed flow from the high transmissivity portion 

of the CSV carbonate aquifer would also spread through the system and lower the groundwater 

levels.  It would have a significant effect on water rights through the LWRFS.  Lowering the 

water table in CSV could increase the gradient between CSV and Kane Springs and draw a small 

amount of groundwater into the CSV.  Because groundwater at the source in Kane Springs is 

limited, inducing flow from Kane Springs Valley is not a sustainable means of increasing the 

available water in LWRFS.  Kane Springs should be managed as part of LWRFS. 

Groundwater levels in northern CSV were several hundred feet higher than in southern CSV and 

there was no apparent effect of the drawdown reaching MW CSVM-3.  Transmissivity in 

northern CSV is likely lower than further south.  There is no evidence of an impedance caused 

by a fault structure isolating north CSV because a fault would prevent groundwater from 

flowing south through CSV.  The pump test did not propagate to that point during the test but 

there is no evidence suggesting it would not do so if the pumping continued.  Developing 

groundwater in this area would intercept groundwater flowing into southern CSV and have the 

same effect as diverting from Kane Springs Valley; it would decrease flow to the springs and 

downgradient water rights. 
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Johnson/Mifflin discuss a regional hydraulic-head gradient and flow between a Steptoe MX well 

and Tule Springs Pond (p 20), but do not provide evidence of a connection or discuss the flow 

path.  This claim begins a paragraph that seems to be a series of unconnected sentences that 

together are almost impossible to review.  The second sentence references an unpublished 

report (Mifflin and Johnson 2013) to claim there is a 2832 m2/day transmissivity across the 

width of California Wash.  Without a figure showing the cross-section, this cannot be 

considered.  They determine the width of California Wash that would be necessary, based on 

the assumed transmissivity, to pass 33,771 m3/day, a hypothetical flow (equal to 10,000 af/y) (p 

19).  

In sum, the Johnson/Mifflin report is riddled with unsupported claims and its conclusions 

should not be relied on.  

Rebuttal to Vidler/Lincoln County Report 

The report submitted by Lincoln County and Vidler Water Company in response to interim 

order #1303 primarily argues that the northern portion of CSV should not be administered as 

part of the LWRFS and that KSV should not be added to the LWRFS for administration.  

However, the data and analysis presented by Lincoln County et al (2019) actually supports 

adding KSV to the LWRFS and certainly does not support removing the northern portion of CSV 

from the LWRFS. 

Lincoln County et al (2019) cited the NSE Ruling #6254 in support of allowing appropriation of 

groundwater that is hundreds of years upgradient (p 2-3).  However, there was no evidence 

presented in the hearing or the order #6254 that KSV is hundreds of years upgradient from 

LWRFS.  The hearing concerned Delamar, Dry Lake and Cave Valley which some argued is that 

far upgradient from CSV and Las Vegas Valley and therefore water could be appropriated, 

although that aspect of Order #6254 has been reversed by the Judge Esty order1.  The Lincoln 

County et al assertion that KSV is hundreds of years upgradient from CSV and LWRFS is not 

supported.  

Lincoln County et al invoke NSE Ruling # 5712 as claiming that there is “not substantial 

evidence” that pumping in KSV will affect the flow at Muddy River Springs, Rogers Spring or 

Blue Point Springs.  That ruling predates the Order 1169 pump and that conclusion has been 

challenged by Myers (2019).  Lincoln County et al also reference Ruling #5712 as suggesting the 

difference in groundwater levels (1875 ft amsl near KSV and less than 1825 ft amsl near MX-5 

and the MRSA) as being due to low transmissivity between the areas.  Myers (2019) and FWS 

(2019) acknowledged the transmissivity is lower than in the larger very high transmissivity zone 

affected by the Order #1169 pump test, but also noted that the gradient through the lower 

                                                 
1
White Pine County and Consolidate Cases, Et al, v Jason King, P.E., Nevada State Engineer, State of Nevada 

Division of Water Resources.  In the Seventh Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada in and for the County of 
White Pine.  Case No. CV1204049.  
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transmissivity is still low as discussed in the following paragraphs and does not represent a 

barrier or even a substantial impedance to flow.  Myers (2019) documented aquifer test effects 

on the CSV wells near KSV. 

Lincoln County et al present a north-south transect of carbonate water level data through CSV 

and MRSA in Figure 3-4 through 3-7.  These figures illustrate well the very flat gradient through 

a large portion of the transect within the carbonate aquifer.  They also illustrate the aquifer 

becomes steeper in northern CSV, as was also documented by Myers (2019).  The steeper 

gradient indicates the transmissivity in the north of CSV is lower for most of the inflow to the 

system than from Pahranagat Valley through to MRSA.  It is not evidence the northern portion 

of the valley is separate from the southern portion. 

Lincoln County et al also presents data from well KMW-1 that they argue shows how KSV is not 

part of CSV.  The geologic section presented as Figure 3-3 does not show a separation between 

KSV and CSV; in fact, the cross-section shows that carbonate rock spans the downstream end of 

KSV so that there would be a connection between KSV and CSV. 

Lincoln County et al allege differences between KMW-1 and well CSVM-4 in CSV are evidence 

that the valleys are different.  Their location map, Figure 3-1, shows that KMW-1 lies at the 

mouth of KSV and CSVM-2 lies about 2.5 miles southwest in CSV.  There is 5.5 feet of vertical 

difference in their water levels which is a 0.00042 gradient.  That is very flat and certainly not 

evidence that a fault they postulate (p 3-4) has any effect on flow between the wells.  With the 

carbonate rock that separates the wells they would be expected to have water level trends that 

are very similar to trends further south in CSV.   

Figure 6 shows a figure from the Lincoln County et al report that compares water level at the 

two wells.  The lines added to their figure show up to four different periods that trend similar to 

each other and to wells south in CSV.  Monitoring at CSVM-4 began just before the wet 2005 

period began, so it shows an increase due to the recharge from that wet year.  A similar 

increase probably occurred in KMW-1.  After the recharge, a long-term decline began.   This 

decline was not due to “years to dissipate in the aquifer”  the effects of a high recharge event 

(p 3-4) but the response to pumping that began in CSV in 2006.  Both wells had a long-term 

decline from 2006 through about the beginning of the aquifer test period during which the 

decline became much steeper, as shown on Figure 5.  FWS estimated the decline at these wells 

during the aquifer test to be 0.5 feet (FWS 2019, Figure 5), but their analysis did not account for 

the lag in the response as discussed here.  There is no evidence that the aquifer test occurred 

during an abnormally dry period, so these wells responded similar to wells further south in CSV.   

A brief recovery occurred at each well a few months after the aquifer test.  The recovery lasted 

a few months longer in the north than further south because of the lower transmissivity in 

northern CSV.  Since the brief recovery, the water levels have trended downward but at a 

slower rate than before the aquifer test.  The slower rate reflects slightly less pumping in CSV 

than prior to the test and slightly above average moisture conditions. 
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Figure 6: Trends at hydrographs of wells KMW-1 and CSVM-4.  Adapted from Lincoln/Vidler et al 
(2019) Figure 3-9 

Lincoln County et al (2019) document well the huge precipitation event that occurred during 

2005, but its claim of estimating in-basin recharge for KSV to be from approximately 4700 to 

7500 af/y (p 3-5), based on data they presented in their Appendix B is inaccurate.  The appendix 

contains precipitation, runoff, and chloride data for precipitation and runoff, but no analysis to 

estimate the recharge. Assuming the precipitation data is representative of the basin and the 

runoff data accurately captures the runoff from the basin, two variables remain, 

evapotranspiration and recharge.  They do not present enough data with which to estimate 

recharge.  The estimate presented is not useful evidence of the amount of water available in 

KSV. 

Lincoln County et al (2019) Section 3.3 attempts to use simple chemistry, age, and thermal data 

as evidence that KSW water differs from the other water in LWRFS that will be managed as one.  
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As will be described in the following paragraphs, nothing in their analysis prescribes that KSV 

water does not mix into CSV water and eventually discharge at MRSA or that pumping 

throughout CSV or KSV will not affect water levels and spring flows throughout the LWRFS. 

Groundwater from KPW-1 has total dissolved solids (TDS) at 774 mg/l, a little higher than the 

groundwater at CSVM-4 which is 682 mg/l (p 3-8).  The authors do not describe the basis for 

these observations, meaning they do not describe whether it is an average or how many 

samples were taken to obtain that average.  It is common for TDS to vary more than 20% 

between measurements, so the difference between the wells could be random fluctuation in 

the data.  None of the wells in their Table 3-2 stand out as substantially different than the 

others. 

Assuming the observations are accurate, the groundwater at KPW-1 is almost the oldest 

(29,000 years) and hottest (136° F) of the wells in the area (p 3-9, -10).  If the water in KPW-1 

originated in KSV as recharge, it circulated deeply over a long time period to exhibit these 

characteristics.  Once it joins water in CSV, the average age of the mixed water is younger and 

the temperature is cooler due to mixing.  Its circulation depth is not relevant to whether KSW 

mixes with water in CSV and is affected by pumping in CSV or further downgradient.  The 

supposed pathways in Lincoln County et al Figure 3-12 do not account for mixing along the 

pathways. 

Lincoln et al Section 4.0 presents substantial geophysical data and analysis for KSV and northern 

CSV and attempts an interpretation of the hydrogeologic effects of the interpreted geology.  

This review does not rebut the geophysical sections and interpretations of the sections, but it 

does question and rebut the interpreted effects on groundwater flow.  As the next paragraphs 

discuss, the data presented by Lincoln County et al does not support the interpretations, and 

the geophysics are not evidence that KSV should not be considered part of the LWRFS. 

Lincoln County et al claim that “faulting that occurs in northern CSV … explains why the water 

levels in KMW-1 and CSVM-4 are distinctly higher than those found in the rest of the basin” (p 

4-9).  They cite their figures 3-4 through 3-9 as demonstrating the change in water level.  The 

correct interpretation of those figures is that the steadily increasing water level going north of 

CSVM-6 is due to decreasing transmissivity.  Their Figure 3-5 shows there is a much more 

substantial increase in water level north of KSMW-1.  Even so, the increase in water levels to 

CSVM-3 of about 330 feet (Figure 3-6) occurs over about 4 miles, so the gradient is only about 

0.0156.  This is not evidence of a step increase over a fault. 

The claim that “faults significantly impede the flow of groundwater from KSV and northern CSV 

… into the southern portion of CSV” (p 4-9) ignores the fact that most flow reaching MRSA 

passes through CSV from Pahranagat Valley and Delamar Valley.  The gradient calculated above 

between KSV and CSV is not a significant impedance. 
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There is also no evidence to suggest the faulting is substantial enough to “cause the water 

levels to build up on the upthrown side of the fault … until there is enough head built up (a few 

tens of feet) for groundwater to push through into northern CSV”.  If that were the case, there 

would be evidence of water flowing parallel to the fault through the higher conductivity zone 

along the fault (p 4-8).  Lincoln County et al are simply wrong to say “there were no effects 

ascribable to the start and subsequent stop of a major pumping stress in monitoring wells 

KMW-1 or CSVM-4, as shown above in Figure 5 and associated text” (p 4-10).  The aquifer test 

effects simply lasted longer at those wells than at others closer to MX-5 because of the lower 

transmissivity in northern CSV, and the increasing distance from the point of diversion. 

Lincoln County el al claims that these wells are too far from the pumping well for the cone of 

depression to reach that far (p 4-10).  They disprove their own claim by noting the “very large 

sequence of carbonate rocks between the location of the Order No. 1169 pumping and KSV and 

northern CSV and that thick sequence likely has a very large transmissivity, which is indicated 

by the nearly flat-water level elevation in much of the LWRFS” (Id.).  This nearly flat-water table 

declined everywhere due to the pumping, as documented by almost all reports filed on Order 

1169.  It was more like the lowering of a lake than the spread of a cone of depression.  The 

lowering water table beyond the end of the flat-water table surface more resembles a cone of 

depression.  Myers (2019) Figure 12 shows the expansion of the drawdown with distance from 

the pumping, similar to a cone of depression.  

Finally, they seem to argue there is no connection because “groundwater from KSV has to flow 

through the Northern LWRFS Boundary Fault where the geologic structure changes” (p 4-10).  If 

it does not flow through the boundary, it has to go somewhere, but Lincoln County et al does 

not explain where else it would go.  FWS noted that “Kane Springs Wash Fault must be 

permeable over much of central Coyote Spring Valley” (FWS 2019, p 22) based on the 

observation that water flowing into CSV at the Pahranagat Shear Zone must flow through the 

carbonate aquifer to the MRSA. 

Lincoln County et al (2019) does not present a compelling argument for not managing KSV as 

part of the LWRFS. 

Lincoln County et al also argues that pumpage from the MRSA completely explains reductions 

in flows of the Muddy River and associated springs and that pumping in CSV has no effect (p 5-

3).  They support this argument by comparing normalized flows of the Muddy River, which 

means adjusting recorded flows by removing flood flows and adding back in the diversions, 

plotting this with the annualized pumping in the MRSA (broken out by carbonate and alluvial 

pumping) and CSV carbonate pumping.  Figure 6 is Figure 5-1 from Lincoln County et al (2019). 

The deficit peaks at just less than 8000 af/y in 2003 and 2004 and began to decrease afterwards 

(Figure 7).  MRSA pumping had peaked in 2000 at almost 8000 af/y before dropping to just over 

6000 af/y from 2001 through 2006.  The most significant decrease in Muddy River deficits 
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occurred from 2005 through 2009 when they had dropped to almost 4000 af/y.  Through this 

period the deficits almost equaled MRSA pumping without including any CSV pumping (Figure 

7). Beginning in 2010, the deficit increased about 1500 af/y and remained above 5000 af/y 

while MRSA pumping increased about 500 af/y for one year before decreasing during 2012.  

This is the period of the aquifer test as may be seen by the much higher pumping in CSV.  For 

five years, the deficits are higher than pumping in MRSA.  This would seem to be a direct 

reaction to the higher pumping in CSV.  The aquifer test pumping caused a broad drawdown 

which means that it mostly drew water from storage.  It slowly captured groundwater 

discharge, as documented by the hydrograph at Warm Springs West (Myers 2019, Figure 14) 

and other springs, and as documented for the Muddy River in Figure 7.  Overall pumping rates 

from 2015 through 2018 are similar to 1995 through 1997, although the sources are different, 

and Muddy River depletions are similar. 

Contrary to their claims, Lincoln Co et al’s analysis of Muddy River depletions and groundwater 

pumping is not evidence that pumping in CSV has no effect on discharge from MRSA. 

 

Figure 7: Muddy River (MR) flow deficit and CSV and MRSA groundwater production.  Source: 
Lincoln County et al (2019) Figure 5-1. 

Rebuttal to US Fish and Wildlife Service Report 

Most US Fish and Wildlife Service (FWS) data and analysis is accurate but their report argues for 

a too-high allowable pumpage from LWRFS.  FWS claims that full recovery from the aquifer test 

occurred by late summer 2015 based on measured water levels in carbonate well EH-4 and 
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As such, the geographic boundary of the LWRFS should be adjusted to include Kane Springs 

Valley Basin.  

In NCA’s Rebuttal Report at section 4, beginning on page 8, NCA’s experts addressed 

several comments made by Lincoln County/Vidler in their initial report titled, “Lower White 

River Flow System Interim Order #1303 Report Focused on the Northern Boundary of the 

Proposed Administrative Unit,” dated July 3, 2019 (the “Lincoln/Vidler Report”), beginning with 

the reliance by Lincoln/Vidler on the purported statement that the State Engineer had supposedly 

found that there would be no significant impact for hundreds of years. In fact, as pointed out by 

NCA’s experts, no such determination was made by the State Engineer with regard to Kane 

Springs Basin or Lincoln/Vidler’s rights.  

An actual review of Ruling 5712 -- issued February 2, 2007, at a time when the State 

Engineer had only limited data relevant to the impacts caused by carbonate groundwater 

pumpage within the LWRFS and no direct statutory right to “conjunctively manage” water 

sources – nonetheless still highlights the following findings made by the State Engineer at that 

time: 

 “The State Engineer further finds that the Applicants’ pumping test supports the 
conclusion that there is considerable potential for ground-water flow in the carbonate 
rocks in the vicinity of well KPW-1” (Pg. 7) 
 

 “The State Engineer finds the evidence indicates a strong hydrologic connection 
between Kane Springs Valley and Coyote Spring Valley, specifically, that ground 
water flows from Kane Springs Valley into Coyote Spring Valley.” (Pg. 21) 

 
 “Given the unique hydrologic connection between the Kane Springs Valley 

Hydrographic Basin and the Coyote Spring Valley Hydrographic Basin, the 
development of ground water within Kane Springs Valley will ultimately affect 
water levels and flows in the White River regional carbonate-rock aquifer system.” 
(Pg. 15) 

  

Notably, as was pointed out in slide 31 of the NCA presentation, several parties – not just NCA – 

found that CSVM-4 and KMV-1 (in Kane Springs Valley Basin) showed effects resulting from 

the Order 1169 aquifer test; SNWA, Moapa Valley Water District, US Fish and Wildlife Service, 

National Park Service, the Center for Biological Diversity, and NCA all made similar findings. 

Additionally, the values for several wells including CSVM-4 were then plotted against EH-4 for 

various periods and there was a high correlation between all the carbonate wells within the 

LWRFS plotted against EH-4, indicating a high level of hydraulic connectivity across the basins 
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